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Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of Flat Glass Group Co., Ltd. (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), I present the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 (“FY20207) (the “Reporting Period”).

In FY2020, the Group benefited from the impact of the release of new capacity as well as stable and strong increase in
demand of PV industry, and its operating revenue reached a new high. The operating revenue of the Group for FY2020
was approximately RMB6,260.42 million, representing an increase of 30.24% as compared to RMB4,806.80 million
for FY2019. The net profit attributable to Shareholders of the parent company for FY2020 was RMB1,628.78 million,
representing an increase of 127.09% as compared to RMB717.24 million for FY2019.

BOOMING DEVELOPMENT OF THE DOMESTIC PV INDUSTRY

During the first several months in FY2020, the domestic installed capacity was affected by the COVID-19 to some extent,
yet with the successful control of the COVID-19 in China plus the attention on clean and low carbon energy from all
walks of the society, particularly subsequent to repeated highlight on “peaking carbon dioxide emissions and achieving
carbon neutrality” on major occasions by President Xi Jinping, the PV industry has witnessed a vigorous recovery trend
since the second half of 2020. Innovation has been extensively applied into product and technology and the electricity
price and cost of power generation continued to decline, and the export of products increased steadily.

According to the statistics from the China PV Industry Association (CPIA), in FY2020, China’s new installed capacity
reached 48.2 gigawatts (“GW?”), representing a year-on-year increase of 60% and ranking first globally for consecutive 8
years. As of the end of FY2020, the cumulative PV grid-connected installed capacity in China reached 253GW, representing
a year-on-year increase of 23.5% and ranking first globally for consecutive 6 years. The volume of PV power generation
in this year reached 260.5 billion kwh, representing a year-on-year increase of 16.2%, and accounted for 3.5% of the
total volume of power generation in China, representing an increase of 0.4 percentage point.

STEADY DEVELOPMENT OF THE OVERSEAS PV MARKET

Global PV market remained a growth trend overall despite various degrees of city closure measures in different countries
driven by the spread of the COVID-19, exerting certain impact on the PV installed capacity. In 2020, new PV installed
capacity increased by 130GW globally, representing a year-on-year increase of 13%, with the United States as the second
largest installed market in the world. A new round of FIT policies in Vietnam spurred a wave of rooftop PV installation in
Vietnam. According to the announcements issued by the Ministry of Industry and Trade in Vietnam, the new PV installed
capacity in Vietnam reached 10.75GW in FY2020, of which the rooftop PV installation capacity exceeded 9GW, leaping
as the third largest installed market in the world. In addition, in light of the cost of PV power generation continuing to
decline and the EU ecological agreement, the European market will remain a growth momentum.

FLAT GLASS GROUP CO., LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020



ACCELERATING THE EXPANSION OF PV GLASS PRODUCTION CAPACITY

PV glass products, being the principal products of the Group, is expected to remain the main driver of the Group’s growth
in 2021. With the rapid development of the global PV industry, the demand for PV glass continues to increase. In order to
meet the strong market demand and further increase the market share of the Company’s PV glass, two PV glass furnaces
with a daily melting capacity 1,000 tons in Vietnam Production Base were ignited and put into production in the fourth
quarter of 2020 and the first quarter of 2021, respectively. The first PV glass furnace with a daily melting capacity of
1,200 tons in the Phase II of Anhui Production Base was ignited and put into production in the first quarter of 2021. In
addition, the Group will promote the construction progress of other PV glass furnaces in Phase II of Anhui Production
Base and it is expected to be ignited and put into production in 2021. Furthermore, the Group also will promote the
construction progress of other PV glass furnaces in Phase III of Anhui Production Base (five PV glass furnaces with a
daily melting capacity 1,200 tons) and it is expected to be ignited and put into production in 2022.

IMPROVING RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT CAPABILITIES THROUGH COST REDUCTION AND
EFFICIENCY IMPROVEMENT

PV glass production lines of the Group that was newly ignited and put into production were large-scale furnaces and is
applied with new production technology, which will enhance the production scale and efficiency of the Group.

At present, the double-sided power generation system is mainly applied in domestic and overseas large-scale PV power
generation projects while the proportion of double glass modules is expanding continuously. Meanwhile, the production
of modules in large size and with high power keeps increasing gradually. As such, the Group will make more investment
in double glass and large-sized glass besides efforts put into R&D of light transmittance rate and self-manufactured
equipment, so as to maintain recognized sustainability and competitiveness of the Group in the Global PV glass market
while meeting the differentiated demand of the solar modules for PV glass.

Raian Hongliang
Chairman

Jiaxing, Zhejiang Province, PRC
29 March 2021

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 FLAT GLASS GROUP CO., LTD.
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Fo " he ea "ended 31 Decembe "

2020 2b1 2018 2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Revenue 6,260,418 4,806,804 3,039,802 2,974,511 2,951,265

Net profit 1,628,784 717,244 410,926 429,511 606,044

Earnings per share
— Basic (RMB) 0.83 0.37 0.23 0.24 0.34
— Diluted (RMB) 0.81 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Fo " he ea "ended 31 Decembe "

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Non-current assets 6,696,524 4,939,536 3,896,692 3,055,430 2,229,959

Current assets 5,569,277 4,452,745 3,056,857 2,950,113 2,236,666

Total assets 12,265,800 9,392,281 6,953,549 5,955,543 4,466,625

— Current liabilities 3,330,801 4,454,089 2,250,047 1,968,537 1,390,010

— Non-current liabilities 1,700,256 425,303 1,034,848 736,633 118,966

Total liabilities 5,031,058 4,879,392 3,284,895 2,705,170 1,508,976

Net assets 7,234,743 4,512,888 3,668,654 3,250,373 2,957,649

Share capital 510,312 487,500 450,000 450,000 450,000

Total equity 7,234,743 4,512,888 3,608,654 3,250,373 2,957,649
Equity attributable to owners

of the Company 7,234,743 4,512,888 3,608,654 3,250,373 2,957,649

The financial summary for the year 2019 and 2020 were extracted from the Consolidated Financial Statements prepared
in accordance with the CASBE, while the financial summary for the years 2016, 2017 and 2018 were extracted from
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the corresponding reporting period prepared in accordance with

the IFRSs.

FLAT GLASS GROUP CO., LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sales of various glass products, including PV glass, float glass,
architectural glass and household glass. The production facilities of the Group are strategically located in Jiaxing, Zhejiang
Province, and Fengyang County, Chuzhou, Anhui Province in the PRC and Haiphong, Vietnam. The Group mainly sells
glass products to customers in countries including China, Thailand, Cambodia, Indonesia, India and the United States.

In FY2020, the Group benefited from the impact of capacity expansion and the boom of PV industry, and its operating
revenue reached a new high. The operating revenue of the Group for FY2020 was approximately RMB6,260.42 million,
representing an increase of 30.24% as compared to RMB4,806.80 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 (“FY2019”).
The net profit attributable to shareholders of the parent company (the “Shareholders”) for FY2020 was RMB1,628.78
million, representing an increase of 127.09% as compared to RMB717.24 million for FY2019.

O e "¢ of he G 4up’s hasiness
i
1. Domes ic e spansion in Ankuai P 6 wnce, he PRC
i {

Two projects on processing capacity of 750,000 tons of PV glass in Phase II of Anhui Production Base represent
the project of using the proceeds from the issuance of A share convertible corporate bonds of the Company and
the project of using the proceeds from the non-public issuance of A shares of the Company, including four PV
glass production lines with a daily melting capacity of 1,200 tons. The first PV glass production line with a daily
melting capacity of 1,200 tons was ignited and put into production in the first quarter of 2021, and another three
are expected to be gradually put into production in 2021.

In addition, due to the vigorous development of the whole PV industry and the differentiated requirements of
downstream customers for large-sized and thin glass, the Group expects that the above capacity will not be able
to meet the demand of downstream customers for the Group’s products after it is put into operation. Thus, the
Group intends to construct five PV glass furnaces with a daily melting capacity of 1,200 tons in Fengning Modern
Industrial Park, Fengyang County, Chuzhou City, Anhui Province, the PRC, which are expected to be gradually
put into operation in 2022.

2. O ¥ Seas e pansion in Haiphong Vie nam
{

Due to novel coronavirus (the “COVID-19”) since the beginning of 2020, Vietnam has stopped issuing visas to China
citizens and the technicians are unable to attend Vietnam site. It has certain impact on the construction progress of
the Vietnam Production Base, but with the control of the COVID-19 and striving for the staff quota from the local
government by the Company, the Company’s staff arrived at the construction site successively, and the construction
activities gradually returned to the normal level. As such, two PV glass furnaces with a daily melting capacity of
1,000 tons in the PV glass production base in Haiphong, Vietnam were ignited and put into production in the fourth
quarter of 2020 and the first quarter of 2021, respectively.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 FLAT GLASS GROUP CO., LTD.
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3. Cold épai "of e ds ing PV glass £1 haces
L

In order to further increase the production efficiency, the Group has cold repaired one PV glass furnace with a daily
melting capacity of 600 tons at the production base in Jiaxing, Zhejiang Province, the PRC, which was completed
and ignited in the fourth quarter of 2020.

4.  Recons ¢ ion of he second floa glass £1 hace comple ed
i1t i i {

In respect of the conduction of cold repair for the Group’s existing daily melting capacity of 600-ton float glass
furnace, the transformation was completed and was re-ignited and put into operation in August 2020.

5.  Upda e on issuance of ng  H sha €s
{

On 5 February 2021, the Company announced to propose to issue up to 76,000,000 new H shares, which has been
approved by the Board. The cap of the new H shares proposed to be issued shall represent: (i) approximately 3.5%
of the total issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the Board meeting; (ii) approximately 3.4% of the
total issued share capital of the Company enlarged by this issuance; (iii) approximately 16.9% of the total issued
H shares of the Company as at the date of the Board meeting; and (iv) approximately 14.4% of the total issued H
shares of the Company enlarged by this issuance. This issuance has been considered and approved at the 2021 first
extraordinary general meeting, the 2021 first A share class meeting and the 2021 first H share class meeting held
on 25 March 2021 and it has been reported to the China Securities Regulatory Commission (“CSRC”) on 25 March
2021. As of the date of this annual report, the issuance of new H shares has not been completed.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW
Booming de elopmen of he domes ic PV indus y i
P\ i i i

During the first several months in FY2020, the domestic installed capacity was affected by the COVID-19 to some extent,
yet with the successful control of the COVID-19 in China plus the attention on clean and low carbon energy from all
walks of the society, particularly subsequent to repeated highlight on “peaking carbon dioxide emissions and achieving
carbon neutrality” on major occasions by President Xi Jinping, the PV industry has witnessed a vigorous recovery trend
since the second half of 2020. Innovation has been extensively applied into product and technology and the electricity
price and cost of power generation continued to decline, and the export of products increased steadily.

According to the statistics from the China PV Industry Association, in FY2020, China’s new installed capacity reached
48.2 GW, representing a year-on-year increase of 60% and ranking first globally for consecutive 8 years. As of the end
of FY2020, the cumulative PV grid-connected installed capacity in China reached 253GW, representing a year-on-year
increase of 23.5% and ranking first globally for consecutive 6 years. The volume of PV power generation in this year
reached 260.5 billion kwh, representing a year-on-year increase of 16.2%, and accounted for 3.5% of the total volume
of power generation in China, representing an increase of 0.4 percentage point.

FLAT GLASS GROUP CO., LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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Global PV market remained a growth trend overall despite various degrees of city closure measures in various countries
as driven by the spread of the COVID-19, exerting certain impact on the PV installed capacity. In 2020, new PV installed
capacity increased by 130GW globally, representing a year-on-year increase of 13%, with the United States as the second
largest installed market in the world. A new round of FIT policies in Vietnam spurred a wave of rooftop PV installation in
Vietnam. According to the announcements issued by the Ministry of Industry and Trade in Vietnam, the new PV installed
capacity in Vietnam reached 10.75GW in FY2020, of which the rooftop PV installation capacity exceeded 9GW, leaping
as the third largest installed market in the world. In addition, in light of the cost of PV power generation continuing to
decline and the EU ecological agreement, the European market will remain a growth momentum.

Accele 4 ing he e gpansion of PV glass p oduc ion capacil_
e % i

PV glass products, being the principal products of the Group, is expected to remain the main driver of the Group’s growth
in 2021. With the rapid development of the global PV industry, the demand for PV glass continues to increase. In order to
meet the strong market demand and further increase the market share of the Company’s PV glass, two PV glass furnaces
with a daily melting capacity 1,000 tons in Vietnam Production Base were ignited and put into production in the fourth
quarter of 2020 and the first quarter of 2021, respectively. The first PV glass furnace with a daily melting capacity of
1,200 tons in the Phase II of Anhui Production Base was ignited and put into production in the first quarter of 2021. In
addition, the Group will promote the construction progress of other PV glass furnaces in Phase II of Anhui Production
Base and it is expected to be ignited and put into production in 2021. Furthermore, the Group also will promote the
construction progress of other PV glass furnaces in Phase III of Anhui Production Base (five PV glass furnaces with a
daily melting capacity 1,200 tons) and it is expected to be ignited and put into production in 2022 gradually.

Imp © g ¢ésea th and de elopmen capabili ies, h dagh cos €duac ion and efficien)c imp 6 emen
i (A i i i

PV glass production line of the Group that was ignited newly and put into production produces large-scale furnaces and
applied new production technology, which will enhance the product scale and efficiency effects of the Group.

At present, the double-sided power generation system is mainly applied in domestic and overseas large-scale PV power
generation projects while the proportion of double glass modules are raising continuously. Meanwhile, the production
of modules with large size and high power increases. As such, the Group will invest more in double glass and large-
sized glass in addition to the efforts put into R&D of light transmittance rate and self-manufactured equipment, so as to
maintain recognized sustainability and competitiveness of the Group in the Global PV glass market while meeting the
differentiated demand of the solar modules for PV glass.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 FLAT GLASS GROUP CO., LTD.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

In FY2020, the Group benefited from the impact of the release of new capacity as well as stable and strong increase in
demand of PV industry, and its operating revenue reached a new high. The operating revenue of the Group for FY2020
was approximately RMB6,260.42 million, representing an increase of 30.24% as compared to RMB4,806.80 million
for FY2019. The net profit attributable to Shareholders of the parent company for FY2020 was RMB1,628.78 million,
representing an increase of 127.09% as compared to RMB717.24 million for FY2019.

Re enuae

The operating revenue of the Group for FY2020 was approximately RMB6,260.42 million, representing an increase of
30.24% as compared to RMB4,806.80 million for FY2019. The increase was mainly because the impact of the release
of new capacity as well as stable and strong increase in demand of PV industry, resulting in the growth of sales volume
and sales price.

The following table set forth our revenue details for the year indicated:

Fo " hg, ea "ended 31 Decembe "
i

2020 2019
(Amndi ed) (Audited)
(RMB) (RMB)
Categories of goods
PV glass 5,225,674,398.32  3,747,703,681.06

Float glass 75,653,286.86 171,052,809.62
Household glass 326,537,446.58 336,346,106.51
Architectural glass 530,624,507.17 451,154,497.71
Mining business" 63,783,515.00 49,629,587.50
Other business® 38,144,638.33 50,917,338.56
By geographical

PRC 4,451,797,460.85 3,320,177,089.51
Asia (excluding China) 1,342,878,079.39 959,545,036.27
Europe 188,748,992.29 208,606,597.97
North America 253,658,246.74 292,487,649.64
Others 23,335,012.99 25,987,647.57

Notes:

(1) “Mining business” mainly include the quartzite ore extracted from the Mine, which was sold to third parties.
2) “Other business” mainly include rental income and sales income of materials.
FLAT GLASS GROUP CO.,LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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The cost of operating of the Group increased by RMB56.9 million, or 1.73%, from RMB3,289.74 million for FY2019
to RMB3,346.64 million for FY2020, which remained stable overall.

G bssp ofi and g oss p ofi ma gin
i i

The gross profit of the Group increased by 92.07% from RMB1,517.06 million in FY2019 to RMB2,913.78 million for
FY2020, and the gross profit margin increased to 46.54% in FY2020 (FY2019: 31.56%). The growth of gross profit
margin was mainly due to the improvement of gross profit margin of the PV glass products, which increased in the average
selling price, and the increase in the sales volume of thin glass (2.0 mm), coupled with the improvement of production
technology, the optimization of production capacity structure and decrease in price of part of raw material and fuel,
which decreased the product costs.

Fo ‘i h% ea "ended 31 Decembe "

2020 2019

(Aadi ed) (Audited)
G oss p ofi Gross profit
G oss p ofi ma @i}l Gross profit margin
RMB’000 (%) RMB’000 (%)
PV glass 2,581,936.05 49.41% 1,231,723.27 32.87%
Float glass 24,267.40 32.08% 21,258.85 12.43%
Household glass 88,445.90 27.09% 94,550.71 28.11%
Architectural glass 147,977.23 27.89% 99,412.18 22.04%
Mineral products 35,819.06 56.16 % 28,964.01 58.36%
Other business 35,330.84 92.62 % 41,159.49 80.84%
Total 2,913,776.48 46.54% 1,517,068.51 31.56%

Sales e {penses

The sales expenses of the Group increased by 18.32%, from RMB255.11 million in FY2019 to RMB301.85 million for
FY2020. The reasons for the increase were mainly due to the increase in sales volume of the PV glass products, being
the principal products of the Group, and increases of domestic shipping unit price and influence of COVID-19, resulting
in the increase in shipment expenses.

Adminis % i e e gpenses
TS

The administrative expenses of the Group increased by 41.85%, from RMB121.50 million in FY2019 to RMB172.35
million for FY2020. The reason for the increase was mainly due to the increase in employee remuneration and benefits
as well as the increase in depreciation and amortization of the Group.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 FLAT GLASS GROUP CO., LTD.
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Resea ‘th and de elopmen cos s
i

The research and development costs of the Group increased by 39.47%, from RMB204.15 million in FY2019 to RMB284.72
million for FY2020. The reason for the increase was mainly due to the increase of research and development projects,
including the improvement of technology of the light transmission rate for ultra-thin glass, large-sized glass and remaining
competitive in the market.

Finance cos s
i

For FY2020, financial costs of the Group amounted to RMB141.53 million, representing an increase of 166.38% from
RMBS53.13 million in FY2019. The increase was mainly due to the increase of interest expenses caused by the increase
of short-term borrowings and the exchange loss caused by the changes in foreign exchange rates. The primary economic
environment in which the principal subsidiary of our Company operates is the PRC and its functional currency is RMB.
However, certain sales and purchases of the Group are denominated in United States dollars, Euros and Japanese yen,
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The interest rate of bank loans was between 1.25% and 4.90% in FY2020, as compared to 2.75% and 5.10% in FY2019.
Income a ¢
i

For FY2020, the income tax of the Group amounted to RMB245.12 million, representing an increase of 68.55% from
RMB145.43 million in FY2019. In addition, the actual tax rate decreased from 16.86% in FY2019 to 13.08% in FY2020.
Details of tax expenses of the Company and certain subsidiaries are set out in the Note (VI) 54 to the financial information
set out in this announcement.

Capi al E pendi-a s
i i

During the Reporting Period, total capital expenditures of the Group amounted to approximately RMB1,950.13 million
(FY2019: RMB1,301.73 million), involving the purchase of fixed assets, construction in progress and intangible assets,
which mainly included the project of annual production capacity of 750,000 tons PV modules covers of Anhui production
bases and the Vietnam Production Base.

Asse s and eaui
{ ¥

Total assets of the Group increased from RMB9,392.28 million as at 31 December 2019 to RMB12,265.80 million as at
31 December 2020. Shareholders’ equity increased from RMB4,512.89 million as at 31 December 2019 to RMB7,234.74
million as at 31 December 2020.

Fi «d asse s impai ‘men losses

i i
For FY2020, the balance of fixed assets impairment losses of the Group was RMB68.67 million, representing an increase
of RMB56.42 or 460.57% from RMB12.25 million as at 31 December 2019. The increase was mainly due to the cold

repair of some PV furnaces and the replacement of the corresponding solar glass processing equipment to further improve
the production capacity of ultra-thin and large-size PV glass.

FLAT GLASS GROUP CO., LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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For FY2020, the Group’s financial liquidity and financial performance remained in a satisfactory condition. For FY2020,
the Group’s main sources of funding were proceeds for the public issuance of A Share convertible corporate bonds, cash

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 FLAT GLASS GROUP CO., LTD. 13
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C edi sk and fo ¢ign e change fsk
i

Most of the Group’s revenues and expenses are paid in RMB, while some of the Group’s sales, procurement and financial
liabilities are denominated in US dollars, Euros, Hong Kong dollars, Vietnam dong and Japanese yen. Most of the Group’s
bank deposits are deposited in RMB and US dollars, while bank loans of the Group were in RMB and United States dollars.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has incurred a net exchange loss of RMB75.35 million mainly due to the adverse
exchange rate fluctuation of RMB against US dollars.

During the Reporting Period, the Group entered into certain forward contracts of currency structure to reduce foreign
exchange risks. The Group will pay close attention to the continuous changes in exchange rate and will consider other
hedging arrangements.

Empl)o ee and €emune 4 ion poli)c
i

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed a total of 3,440 employees and most of them were based in the PRC,
with a total employee remuneration amounted to RMB333.97 million, representing 5.33% of the Group’s total revenue.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its employees and provides trainings to its employees. New joiners
must attend mandatory in-house training. Furthermore, employees may attend external trainings such as trainings for
manufacturing management, quality control management and human resources management. Remuneration of employees
is reviewed periodically by reference to the market rate. After considering performance of the Group and job performance
of specific employees, the Group may pay them discretionary bonus.

The Group makes contributions for its employees in relation to the mandatory social security funds including pension,
work-related injury insurance, maternity insurance, medical and unemployment insurance and housing provident fund
contributions in the PRC.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2020, the total equity of the Group was 2,041,248,788 shares, of which 1,591,248,788 were A shares
and 450,000,000 were H shares.

DIVIDEND

In order to share the achievement of the Group in 2020 with all our shareholders, the Board has recommended a final
dividend of RMBO.15 per share, subject to shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting.

FLAT GLASS GROUP CO., LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020



TAXATION
Holde § of A sha ®©s

In accordance with the Notice of the Ministry of Finance, the State Administration of Taxation and the CSRC on
Implementing Differentiated Individual Income Tax Policy for Stock Dividends of Listed Companies (Cai Shui [2015]
No.1OH @ OOOODDOOODDOOODOODODOODOODOODOODODOODODOODOOOObOOODbDObODbDOb
(0 0 [2015]1010)), for shares of listed companies acquired by individuals from public offerings or transfer of shares
in the market, where the holding period exceeds one year, the dividends shall be temporarily exempted from individual
income tax; where the holding period is less than one month (inclusive), the full amount of dividends shall be counted
as taxable income and where the holding period is more than one month and less than one year (inclusive), 50% of the
dividends shall be counted as taxable income on a provisional basis. The individual income tax rate of 20% shall be
applicable for all incomes mentioned above. For dividends distributed by listed companies, where the period of individual
shareholding is within one year (inclusive), the listed companies shall not withhold the individual income tax temporarily.
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Notice of the Ministry of Finance, the State Administration of Taxation and the
CSRC on the Tax Policies Related to the Pilot Program of the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect (Cai Shui [2014]
No. 8H)(ODDOOOOOOOOOOUOUOUOOoooooooooboobobobbDbDbbObbbOoOoOoooooao

(0 O [2014]810)), listed companies shall withhold an income tax at the rate of 10% on dividends from the A shares of
the company invested by Hong Kong investors (including enterprises and individuals) through the SSE, and apply for
withholding via the competent tax authorities (before the Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited is able to
provide details such as investor identities and holding periods to China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation
Limited, the policy of differentiated rates of taxation based on holding periods will temporarily not be implemented).
For investors who are tax residents of other countries and whose country of domicile is a country which has entered into
a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of lower than 10%, those enterprises and individuals may, or
may entrust a withholding agent to, apply to the competent tax authority of the listed company for the entitlement of the
rate under such tax treaty. Upon approval by the competent tax authority, the paid amount in excess of the tax payable
based on the tax rate according to such tax treaty will be refunded.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Notice of the Ministry of Finance, the State Administration of Taxation and the
CSRC on the Tax Policies Related to the Pilot Program of the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect (Cai Shui [2016]
No. 27)(OUUOOOODOOOOUOOOODODOOOOOOOOOoODOODbOOOOOooooobobobbobooooo
(0 O [2016]1270)), listed companies shall withhold an income tax at the rate of 10% on dividends from the A shares
of the company invested by Hong Kong investors (including enterprises and individuals) through the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, and apply for withholding via the competent tax authorities (before the Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company
Limited is able to provide details such as investor identities and holding periods to China Securities Depository and
Clearing Corporation Limited, the policy of differentiated rates of taxation based on holding periods will temporarily
not be implemented). For investors who are tax residents of other countries and whose country of domicile is a country
which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of lower than 10%, those enterprises
and individuals may, or may entrust a withholding agent to, apply to the competent tax authority of the listed company
for the entitlement of the rate under such tax treaty. Upon approval by the competent tax authority, the paid amount in
excess of the tax payable based on the tax rate according to such tax treaty will be refunded.

Holde § of H sha és

In accordance with the requirements of the Circular on Certain Issues Concerning the Policies of Individual Income
Tax (Cai Shui Zi [1994] No. 020) (U D OO OOD0OOODOOODOOO@MDOON1994]0200)) promulgated
by the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation on 13 May 1994, overseas individuals are, as an
interim measure, exempted from the PRC individual income tax for dividends or bonuses received from foreign-invested
enterprises.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Notice of the State Administration of Taxation on Matters Concerning Withholding
Enterprise Income Tax When China Resident Enterprises Distribute Dividends to Foreign Non-resident Enterprise
Shareholders of H Shares (Guo Shui Han [2008] No. 897) (D O 0O OO0 0OOOOOOOOOOOOHOOOOOO
0000000000000 0000000000O(@0O0[2008]8970)), distributing dividends to foreign non-
resident enterprise shareholders of H shares for 2008 and for the years onwards shall be subject to the enterprise income
tax withheld at a uniform rate of 10%. Upon receipt of such dividends, an overseas non-resident enterprise shareholder
may apply to the competent tax authorities for relevant treatment under the tax treaties (arrangements) in person or
through a proxy or a withholding agent and provide evidence in support of its status as a beneficial owner as defined
in the tax treaties (arrangements). Upon verification by the competent tax authorities, the difference between the tax
levied and the amount of tax payable as calculated at the tax rate under the tax treaties (arrangements) will be refunded.
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According to the requirements of the Notice on the Tax Policies Concerning the Pilot Program of the Shanghai Hong
Kong Stock Connect published by the Ministry of Finance, the State Administration of Taxation and the CSRC (Cai Shui
[2014] No. 8) (DO O OOOOOOOODDODOODODDOOOOOOOOUODOOODOODODDODODODDODOOOOOOO
000 O[2014]1810)), H-share companies shall withhold an individual income tax at the rate of 20% on dividends
from the H shares of the company invested by mainland individual investors on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange through
the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect. For dividends of the shares listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange received
by mainland securities investment funds from investment through the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect, individual
income tax shall be calculated in accordance with the above requirements. For dividends of the shares listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange received by mainland enterprise investors from investment through the Shanghai-Hong Kong
Stock Connect, H-share companies shall not withhold income tax of dividends, and mainland enterprise investors shall
report and pay the tax amount by themselves. In particular, the dividends received by resident enterprises in mainland
which hold H shares for at least 12 consecutive months shall be exempted from enterprise income tax according to law.

According to the requirements of the Notice on the Tax Policies Concerning the Pilot Program of the Shenzhen Hong
Kong Stock Connect published by the Ministry of Finance, the State Administration of Taxation and the CSRC (Cai Shui
[2016] No. 1I27) (O O0ODODODOOOOOOOODODODOOOOOOOUODODODOOODOOUOOUODODODDbDOOOOO
000 (@ 0O [2016]1270 )), H-share companies shall withhold an individual income tax at the rate of 20% on dividends
from the H shares of the company invested by mainland individual investors on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange through
the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect. For dividends of the shares listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange received
by mainland securities investment funds from investment through the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect, individual
income tax shall be calculated in accordance with the above requirements. For dividends of the shares listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange received by mainland enterprise investors from investment through the Shenzhen-Hong Kong
Stock Connect, H-share companies shall not withhold income tax of dividends, and mainland enterprise investors shall
report and pay the tax amount by themselves. In particular, the dividends received by resident enterprises in mainland
which hold H shares for at least 12 consecutive months could be exempted from enterprise income tax according to law.

The shareholders of the Company shall pay the relevant tax and/or are entitled to tax reliefs in accordance with the above
requirements.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

M ¢ Raan Hongliang ([J [0 O 0O 0 ), aged 59, is a founder of the Group and a controlling shareholder of the Company. He
is currently an executive Director and the chairman of Board and the general manager of the Company, mainly responsible
for the overall corporate strategies formulation, management of business and operation of the Group. Mr. Ruan is currently
a member of the remuneration committee and the chairman of each of the nomination committee, strategic development
committee and risk management committee of the Company. Mr. Ruan graduated from Jiaxing First High School (I [J [J [
UO00)in July 1978.

Mr. Ruan has over 35 years’ experience in glass industry. Mr. Ruan served in the Company’s predecessor as a director
from June 1998 to December 2005, the deputy chairman of the Board from June 1998 to February 1999 and as the
chairman of the Board from March 1999 to May 2000 and from September 2003 to December 2005, respectively. Mr.
Ruan also served as the deputy general manager of the Company’s predecessor from May 2000 to September 2003. Mr.
Ruan has served in the Company as the chairman of the Board and the general manager since December 2005. Mr. Ruan
also serves in the Company’s subsidiaries. He has been a director and general manager of Shanghai Flat Glass Co., Ltd.*
(0DO0OD0DO0O0O0O0D0O0O0O0O0) (“Shanghai Flat”) since June 2006, of Zhejiang Jiafu Glass Co., Ltd.* (0 0 O OO OO
0 0O 0O) (“Zhejiang Jiafu”) since August 2007, of Anhui Flat Solar Materials Co., Ltd.* (00 00O OOO0OOOO
[ ) (“Anhui Flat Materials”) since January 2011, of Anhui Flat Solar Glass Co., Ltd* (U 000 O O0OO0OOOOO)
(“‘Anhui Flat Glass”) since January 2011, of Zhejiang Flat Glass Co., Ltd.* (D O O O 0O 0O O 0O 0O 0O O) (“Zhejiang Flat”)
since February 2011 and of Jiaxing Flat New Energy Technology Co., Ltd.* (U D 0D 000000000 DO D) (“Flat
New Energy”) since March 2014. He has also been a director of Flat (Hong Kong) Co., Limited (0 O O (O O )0 O O
) (“Flat HK”) since January 2013, of Flat (Hong Kong) Investment Co., Limited (O 0O O (O 0O )0 0O 0O OO O) (“Flat
HK INVEST”) since July 2017. He has been the general manager of the Flat Research and Development Center and the
executive Director and general manager of Flat (Jiaxing) Import and Export Trade Limited (“Flat Trade”) since 2019,
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Mr. Ruan also serves in various industry and business associations. He has served as a standing vice-chairman of
Zhejiang Provincial Glass Industry Association® (U O 0O O 0O 0O 0O 0O O ) since April 2009, a vice-chairman of Jiaxing
City Entrepreneur Association® (0 O 0O 0O 0O 0O 0O 0O) and Jiaxing City Chamber of Commerce* (0 00 00O OO0

) since October 2010 and December 2011, respectively. Mr. Ruan has received several awards during the past years,
including but not limited to, “the Advanced Participants in Association Activities in the Year 2012* (20120 0O 0 0O O

U 0O00O0O0O0O)” granted by China Architectural and Industrial Glass Association* (U U0 0 OO OOOOOOOMO) in
March 2013, “Excellent Entrepreneur of Small and Medium Enterprises in Zhejiang Province* (01 0D OO OO O OO

0 O 0O)” granted by Association of Small and Medium Enterprises in Zhejiang Province* (U OO O OO O OO ) and
Selection Committee of Excellent Entrepreneur of Small and Medium Enterprises in Zhejiang Province* (0 0 O O O O

00000000000 )in December 2012, and “Jiaxing Charity Award in the Year 2011* (20110 000 0 0O O)”
granted by Jiaxing Municipal People’s Government in December 2011. In addition, Mr. Ruan was also awarded as “The
Innovative Pioneer People of Small and Medium Enterprises in the PRC* (U OO OO0 O OO0 OO )” granted by
Association of Small and Medium Enterprises in the PRC* (U 00 O OO O OO O O ) and Selection Committee of Innovative
Products among the PRC Enterprises* (U OO OO OO OOOOOODOO) in October 2011, and one of Mr. Ruan’s
research results was awarded as “Top 100 Innovative & Excellent Research Results of Small and Medium Enterprises
in the PRC* (20110 0 0000 0O OO 1000/0 00 OO O)” by same institutions in October 2011. In April 2013,
Ruan Hongliang was awarded the title of model worker by the Jia Xing Municipal Government. In May of the same
year, Mr. Ruan Hongliang was awarded a Private Entrepreneur of Outstanding Contribution in the 30th Anniversary of
Establishment of Jiaxing City with Revocation of District. In 2016, Mr. Ruan Hongliang was ranked among the “Ten Top
Distinguished Figures with Great Contributions to the Industrial Transformation”, which was a part of the 5th session of
“Ten Top Distinguished Figures” elections jointly organized by Jiaxing Economic and Information Committee, Jiaxing
Science and Technology Bureau and Jiaxing Commerce Bureau. On 1 February 2017, he was awarded the honorary
certificate of “Excellent Enterprise Manager of Xiuzhou National High-tech Zone in 2017 by the Management Committee
of Xiuzhou Hi-tech Industrial Development Zone . In December 2018, he was awarded the title of “Model Worker of
Jiaxing” by Jiaxing Federation of Trade Unions. In March 2020, he was awarded the title of “Meritorious Entrepreneur”
by Jiaxing Municipal Party Committee and Jiaxing Municipal People’s Government.

Mr. Ruan Hongliang is the spouse of Ms. Jiang Jinhua, an executive Director, father of Ms. Ruan Zeyun, the company
secretary of the Company and father-in-law of Mr. Zhao Xiaofei, a deputy general manager of the Company.

Ms. Jiang Jinhaa (O O O O O ), formerly known as Ms. Jiang Jin’e (I O O ), aged 59, joined the Group in June 2000
and is currently an executive Director, the deputy chairman of Board and a deputy general manager of the Company,
mainly responsible for assisting Mr. Ruan Hongliang to discharge his duties as the general manager of the Company.
Ms. Jiang is a controlling shareholder of the Company and also currently a member of the remuneration committee of
the Company. Ms. Jiang graduated from Arizona State University in the United States in May 2013 with a master degree
in business management (long distance learning).

Ms. Jiang has over 27 years’ experience in glass industry. She chaired the Board from June 2000 to September 2003 and
served as the deputy general manager of our predecessor from September 2003 to December 2005. Ms. Jiang has also
served as our deputy chairman of Board since December 2005. She has been a deputy general manager of the Company
since June 2009. She served as a director of Zhejiang Jiafu and Anhui Flat Materials, our subsidiaries, from August 2007
to March 2014 and from January 2011 to March 2014, respectively. She also served as the executive deputy general
manager of Zhejiang Jiafu from February 2012 to November 2012. She was the executive Director and general manager
of Yucheng Commerce and Trade*(OJ O O O ) from 2013 to 2015; has been the vice president and deputy general manager
since 2005, the general manager of the public utilities department since 2016, the supervisor of Flat Trade since June
2019, the executive Director and general manager of Zhejiang Deyuan Agricultural Development Co., Ltd* (0 0O O O
0000000 0) since December 2020.
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Outside of the Group, Ms. Jiang has been the general manager of Jiaxing Xiucheng District Construction Project Co., Ltd.*
(OO0 O0O0O0O0bOboOoOoogn)fromJune 1993 to June 2000 and was a supervisor of Jiaxing Glassware Plant* (O
OO0O0000DO)from August 1998 to August 2009. Ms. Jiang served as a supervisor of Jiaxing City Fute Safety Glass
Co,Ltd* (000D DOOOOONON) from December 2003 to August 2008. Ms. Jiang was awarded as “Excellent
Female Entrepreneur in Jiaxing® (I 0 U 0O 0O O 0O O O )” by Female Association of Jiaxing® (I 0 U 0 0O U 0 0O ) and
Association of Female Entrepreneur in Jiaxing® (U O O 0O 0O O O O 0O ) in December 2012. Ms. Jiang was awarded as
“Outstanding Contribution to Women in Global Business by Women Entreprenuers” by the United Nations Commission
on Women’s Status in March 2008. In December 2020, she was selected as the “Scientific and Technological Innovation
Figure during the 13th Five-Year Plan Period” by China Sundry Articles Industry Association. In December 2020, she was
awarded the title of “Charismatic Businesswoman of Zhejiang and Model Winner of Two Battles” by Zhejiang Association
of Women Entrepreneurs. Ms. Jiang is also the vice president of Zhejiang Association of Women Entrepreneurs, and
legal person and president of Cizhou Community Public Welfare Development Center, Xiuzhou District, Jiaxing.

Ms. Jiang Jinhua is the spouse of Mr. Ruan Hongliang, an executive Director, mother of Ms. Ruan Zeyun and mother-
in-law of Mr. Zhao Xiaofei, a deputy general manager of the Company.

M U Wei Yezhong ([J [0 0 0 0 ), aged 49, a co-founder of the Group and is currently an executive Director and a deputy
general manager of the Company, mainly responsible for management of our industrial parks of headquarter. Mr. Wei is
currently a member of the strategic development committee of the Company. Mr. Wei graduated from Jiaxing Advanced
Vocational College* (U U OO OO OO O) in Jiaxing City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC, in July 1992. Mr. Wei has
been an assistant engineer recognized by Jiaxing Municipal Bureau of Personnel, Zhejiang Province* (O 00 0 O O O
0 0O 0O), now known as Jiaxing Municipal Bureau of Human Resources and Social Security* (U OO O OO OO OO
0 0O 0O), since August 2000, and an engineer recognized by Jiaxing Municipal Bureau of Human Resources and Social
Security since February 2013. Mr. Wei has also been an expert member of the building curtain wall risk-based detection
committee of detection technology branch of the Chinese Ceramic Society* (U 0 0O O O0O0OODODOOOOOOO
000000000 ) since March 2015.

Mr. Wei has over 25 years’ experience in glass industry. He served in our predecessor as a sales manager from March

2003 to September 2010. He has been serving as a deputy general manager of the Company since July 2009 and a Director
since August 2009. He also served as the chairman of the board of Supervisors of the Company from December 2005 to
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M ¢ Shen Qikx (U O 0 0 0O), aged 54, joined the Group in September 1999 and is currently an executive Director of the
Company, mainly responsible for management of the business and operation of Zhejiang Flat. Mr. Shen graduated from
Shanghai University of Engineering Science* (Ll 0 U O O O O O ) in Shanghai, the PRC, in January 1987, majoring in
machinery manufacturing and equipment.

Mr. Shen has over 19 years’ experience in glass industry. Mr. Shen served successively as workshop manager and
deputy manager of production department in our predecessor from September 1999 to December 2001. He also served
in our predecessor as a brand management manager from December 2001 to August 2010. He served as a Supervisor of
the Company from December 2005 to June 2009 and as the chairman of the board of Supervisors of the Company from
June 2009 to January 2015. Mr. Shen also served or serves in our subsidiaries. He successively served as a manager of
processing production department, an assistant general manager and a deputy general manager of Zhejiang Jiafu from
August 2010 to May 2012. He also served as a deputy general manager of Zhejiang Flat from May 2012 to January 2014.
He has served as the executive deputy general manager of Zhejiang Flat since January 2014. He has served as the Director
of the Company since 2015 and the general manager of the household glass business segment of the Company since 2016.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

M ¢ Gai Xiaozhong (! 00 U0 O O ), aged 50, joined the Group in November 2016 and is currently an independent non-
executive Director of the Company. Mr. Cui is currently the chairman of each of the audit committee and remuneration
committee, and a member of each of the nomination committee, strategic development committee and risk management
committee of the Company. Mr. Cui graduated from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics* (U O O O O [ ) in
Dalian City, Liaoning Province, the PRC, in April 2007 with a master degree in Accounting and graduated from Dongbei
University of Finance and Economics with a doctor degree in management in June 2010.

Mr. Cui has served as an independent non-executive Director of the Company since November 2016. Mr. Cui has been
long dedicated to education of accounting and has over 14 years’ experience of accounting and finance. He has served
as a teacher of accounting in Jiaxing College* (00 00 O O ) since June 2010.

Mr. Cui has been a teacher in Jiaxing College. He has been an independent Director of the Company, an independent
Director of Zhejiang Chenguang Cable Co., Ltd.* (U O OO OO O OO O OO ) since March 2016. He has been the
head of accounting department of business school of Jiaxing College, an independent Director of Wutong Holding Group
Co.,Ltd* (D O0OOODODOOOONODN), and a member of Zhejiang Management and Accounting Expert Advisory
Committee *(U 0 000 O0O0OOODODOOO)since 2017. He served as an independent Director of Zhejiang Shapuaisi
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. from 2018 to August 2020. He has been an independent Director of Suzhou Industrial Park
Heshun Electric Co., Ltd. since 2019.

Ms. Haa Ealan (O O 00), aged 58, joined the Group in November 2018 and is currently an independent non-executive
Director the Company, and a member of the audit committee and remuneration committee. Ms Hua graduated from
Zhejiang Sci-Tech University with a master degree in engineering in July 2011.

Ms. Hua served as a technical engineer in Silk Weaving General Mill of Hangzhou (U O O 0 0O O ) from July 1987 to
March 1994, a department manager in Zhejiang Torch Industry Development Center (U U O O O OO O O O 0O) from
April 1994 to December 2002, and as a department manager of Zhejiang Torch Spark Technology Development Co., Ltd.*
(OO O0O0O0O0oO00bobbnbO)from?2002to2013. She has been the Director and general manager of Zhejiang Torch
Spark Technology Development Co., Ltd.* (0 0 0 0 OO OO0 OO O O) from 2013. She has been the supervisor of
Zhejiang Torch Venture Capital Management Consulting Co., Ltd..
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M “Ng Ki Hang (O U O 0 00), aged 67, joined the Group in January 2015 and is currently an independent non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Ng is currently a member of each of the audit committee and nomination committee of
the Company.

Mr. Ng has served as an executive director of Jinhui Holdings Company Limited (U U O 0O 0 0O J ) (listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), stock code: 137) and Jinhui Shipping and Transportation
Limited (listed on Oslo Stock Exchange, stock code: JIN) since August 1991 and May 1994, respectively. He has been
the Director of Jinhui Holdings Company Limited since 1991.

SUPERVISORS

M ¢ Zheng Wen ong (L J O O O), aged 57, a co-founder of the Group, is currently the chairman of the board of
supervisors of the Company. Mr. Zheng graduated from Jiaxing First High School* (U 0O O O 0 O O ) in June 1979.

Mr. Zheng has over 21 years’ experience in glass industry. He served as the chairman of the Board, the deputy chairman
of the Board and the manager of domestic sales of our predecessor from May 2000 to June 2000, from June 2000 to
December 2005 and from June 1998 to February 2008, respectively. He served as a Director and the deputy general
manager of PV glass business department of the Company from December 2005 to January 2015 and from August 2011
to March 2012, respectively. He served as the deputy head of the president’s office of the Company from March 2012
to December 2015, and he has served as the manager of the engineering department since January 2016. Mr. Zheng
also served in our subsidiaries. He served as a deputy general manager of Zhejiang Jiafu and a director of Anhui Flat
Materials from February 2008 to September 2010 and from January 2011 to March 2014, respectively. He served as the
manager of the engineering department of the Company from 2012 to 2016. He has been the chairman of the board of
supervisors of the Company since 2015. He has been the general manager of the engineering division under the strategic
development department of the Company since 2017.

Outside of the Group, Mr. Zheng worked as a director and the chairman of the board of directors of Jiaxing Glassware
Plant* (0 0 OO0 0O OO ) from August 1998 to May 2000 and from May 2000 to August 2009, respectively.

M U Shen Eaaguaan (0 O 0 0 0), aged 61, a co-founder of the Group, is currently a supervisor of the Company.

Mr. Shen has over 20 years’ experience in glass industry. He served as a Director, the deputy chairman of the Board and
a manager of sales department I in our predecessor from May 2000 to June 2000, from May 2000 to June 2000 and from
December 2001 to December 2005, respectively. Mr. Shen served as a Director of the Company from December 2005 to
January 2015. He served as a manager of procurement department and a manager of marketing department from November
2011 to December 2015 and from January 2016 to December 2016. Mr. Shen also served in our subsidiaries. He served
as a manager of procurement department of Shanghai Flat from January 2006 to November 2008 and a director of Anhui
Flat Glass from January 2011 to March 2014. He has been the supervisor of the Company since 2015, the deputy general
manager of Shanghai Flat Glass Co., Ltd.*(U OO OO0 0O OO0 O) since 2017 and the deputy general manager of
the engineering division under the strategic development department of the Company since January 2018.

Outside of the Group, Mr. Shen served as a supervisor of Jiaxing Glassware Plant* (I O O 0O 0O O O O ) from August

1998 to August 2009. He also served as a director of Jiaxing Flat Glass Mirror Co., Ltd* (U OO DO DD DO OOO)
from July 2000 to December 2008.
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M ¢ Zha Quanming (U 0 00 O 0 ), aged 67, a co-founder of the Group, is currently a supervisor of the Company.

Mr. Zhu has over 21 years’ experience in glass industry. He served as a supervisor and manager of retail department
of our predecessor from June 1998 to December 2005 and a manager of production department of the Company from
December 2005 to September 2010, respectively. He served in the Company as a Director from December 2005 to
January 2015, as a deputy general manager from June 2009 to May 2011 and as a deputy general manager of processed
glass business department from September 2010 to February 2012. Mr. Zhu also served or serves in our subsidiaries.
He served as the executive deputy general manager of Shanghai Flat from February 2012 to November 2012 and served
as a supervisor of Anhui Flat Materials from January 2011 to March 2014. He also served as a deputy general manager
of Zhejiang Jiafu from November 2012 to January 2015. He was a senior consultant of the float glass business division
from 2015 to 2016. He has been a senior consultant of the architectural glass business segment since 2017. He was the
supervisor of the Company from 2015.

Outside of the Group, Mr. Zhu served as a director of Jiaxing Flat Mirror Co., Ltd.* (U OO OO OO O OO O ) from
July 2000 to December 2008.

Ms. Ndux Liping (U O O O 0), aged 35, joined the Group in October 2003. Ms. Niu was appointed as a staff representative
supervisor of the Company on 23 September 2019. She was initially a statistician in the Company, and then moved to
become a warehouse administrator in August 2004. She then moved into her current position in January 2006 as a cashier
in the finance department of the Company, primarily responsible for dealing with bank payments of the Company. She
is also the chairman of the trade union of the Company since December 2009. She has been the head of treasury of the
finance management department under the financial center of the Company since 2020.

Ms. Niu graduated from Northwestern Polytechnical University (U U O [0 OJ [ ) in the People’s Republic of China with
a bachelor’s degree major in accounting, which she attended through online courses.

Ms. Zhang Haizhen (O O O O O), aged 46, joined the Group in February 2006. Ms. Zhang was appointed as the staff
representative supervisor of the Company on 23 September 2019. She was initially the supervisor of the lamination
production line and cutting production line of the Company. Between January 2013 and December 2014, she was the
product line supervisor of the production base of the processed glass business. In January 2015, she was promoted to the
production line supervisor of the headquarter energy-saving production base of the architectural glass business segment.
In January 2016, Ms. Zhang was further promoted to the production line supervisor of the headquarter production base
for the energy-saving glass business. She was promoted to deputy manager of the same production line between January
2017 and December 2018. Since January 2019, she has been the production manager of the energy-saving glass business
and the float glass business of the Company. She has been an assistant to the general manager of the energy-saving glass
business in industrial park since 2020.

Ms. Zhang completed her junior college studies at Northwestern Polytechnical University (U O O O 00 [0 ) in the People’s
Republic of China majoring in business administration, which she attended through online courses.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

M ¢ Wei Zhiming (I U [0 00 0O ), aged 52, joined the Group in August 2006 and is currently a deputy general manager of
the Company, mainly responsible for management of the strategic department and technology research and development
of the Group. Mr. Wei graduated from Hangzhou University* (L OJ [0 [J ) in Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC,
in July 1991 with a bachelor degree in chemistry.

Mr. Wei has over 28 years’ experience in glass industry. He severed as a deputy general manager of the Company and
the general manager of the strategic department of the Company since May 2011 and January 2016, respectively. He
served as a general manager of the PV glass business department of the Company from February 2012 to December
2015. He served successively as assistant to president and deputy manager of technology research and development
center of the Company from May 2011 to June 2011. He also served as the deputy general manager of Shanghai Flat and
the executive deputy general manager of Zhejiang Jiafu from August 2006 to February 2008 and from February 2008
to February 2012, respectively. He has been the deputy general manager of the Company since 2011. He has been the
general manager of the strategic development department of the Company since 2016. Mr. Wei is also a member of PV
Specialized Committee of China Architectural and Industrial Glass Association* (U 00 00000 0O0OOO0OODOONO
00000 DO). In October 2011, one of the research results Mr. Wei participated in was awarded as “Top 100 Innovative
& Excellent Research Results of Small and Medium Enterprises in the PRC* (20110 0 0 000 0O 0O 0O 1000 /0 0 O
0 O O)” by Association of Small and Medium Enterprises in the PRC* (I U U O 00 O O O ) and Selection Committee
of Innovative Products among the PRC Enterprises* (U U OO OO O OOOOODOOO).

Prior to joining the Group, he started his career working as the deputy plant manager of Huzhou Glass Plant* (O O 0
U 00) from August 1991 to June 2001.

M ¢ Zhao Xiaofei (I U 0 O [0), aged 35, joined the Group in May 2011 and is currently a deputy general manager of
the Company, mainly responsible for the management of the business and operation of the Group’s PV glass business
department. Mr. Zhao is also a controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Zhao graduated from the University of
Northern Virginia in the United States in December 2007 with a bachelor degree in science in business administration
(long distance learning).

Mr. Zhao served as assistant to manager of the PV glass sales department of sales center of the Company and assistant
to general manager of sales center of the Company from May 2011 to July 2011 and from July 2011 to February 2012,
respectively, a deputy general manager of float glass business department of the Company from November 2012 to
February 2013, as well as deputy general manager of sales center of the Company from February 2013 to July 2013. He
also served as assistant to general manager of Zhejiang Jiafu from February 2012 to August 2012. He served as a deputy
general manager of Zhejiang Jiafu from August 2012 to November 2012. He served as the executive deputy general
manager of Zhejiang Jiafu from July 2013 to December 2015. He served as a deputy general manager of the Company
and the general manager of the PV glass business department of the Company since January 2015 and January 2016,
respectively. He has been the supervisor of PetroChina Kunlun Gas since April 2020.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhao worked as a sales manager for Zhejiang Newfine Industry Co., Ltd.* (U O 0 O 0
O0oO0oOoDoOD0O0) fromMay 2008 to April 2011.

Mr. Zhao is the spouse of Ms. Ruan Zeyun and son-in-law of Mr. Ruan Hongliang, an executive Director, and Ms. Jiang
Jinhua, an executive Director.
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M ¢ Jiang Weijie (U [0 O O O ), aged 34, graduated from the University of Nottingham with a master degree in Supply
Chain and Operations Management.

Mr. Jiang served as the business manager of trade and finance department of the Jiaxing Branch of Bank of China from
July 2011 to April 2014. He was the business manager of business department of the Jiaxing Branch of Bank of China
from April 2014 to March 2017, and he served as general manager assistant of Financial Center of Flat Glass Group
from April 2017 to January 2018. He served as deputy general manager of Financial Center of the Company from 2018
to 2019. He has been the financial officer since March 2019.

Ms. Raan Ze~an (O O 0O 0O O), formerly known as Ms. Ruan Xiao (0 [0 ), aged 34, joined the Group in October 2009
and was appointed as a joint company secretary of the Company on 1 April 2015 and become a sole company secretary
since 1 March 2019, mainly responsible for the daily affairs of the Board. Ms. Ruan to also a controlling shareholder
of the Company. Ms. Ruan graduated from Sheffield University in England in September 2009 with a master degree in
management.

Ms. Ruan served as the Board secretary of the Company from April 2010 until now. She also served or serves in our
subsidiaries. She served as an assistant to general manager of Shanghai Flat from October 2009 to January 2011 and
has served as the executive deputy general manager of Shanghai Flat from January 2010 to December 2011. Ms. Ruan
has served as the chief financial officer of the Company between 2013 and 2017. She served as a director of Anhui Flat
Glass from January 2011 to March 2014. She has been the secretary to the Board of the Company since 2010, the joint
secretary of the Company from 2015 to 2018, and the deputy general manager of the Company since August 2020. Ms.
Ruan also serves in several industry and business associations. She is a member of PV Specialized Committee of China
Architectural and Glass Association* (U 0O O00OO0O0O0OO0OOOOOODOOONOCO) and a member of Youth
Association in Jiaxing* (U O O OO OOO).

Apart from the positions in the Group, she served as the supervisor of Yucheng Commerce and Trade* (O O O O ) from
2013 to 2015, the supervisor of Fengyang Hongding Port Co., Ltd.* (0 O 0 0 O O O O O O) in 2016, and the executive
Director of Jiaxing Yihe Investment Co., Ltd.* (0 0 O O 0O 0O O O O O) from 2016, the Director of Kaihong Flat* ([J
U 0O 0) from January 2020 and the Director of Hangyang Investment Holding Company Limited * (U 0O O 0O 0O 0O O
0 0O 0O) since September 2020.

Ms. Ruan Zeyun is the spouse of Mr. Zhao Xiaofei, a deputy general manager of the Company, and the daughter of Mr.
Ruan Hongliang, an executive Director, and Ms. Jiang Jinhua, an executive Director.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Raan Zean (O O O O O), formerly known as Ms. Ruan Xiao (IJ [ ), aged 34, joined the Group in October 2009.
Ms Ruan was appointed as a joint company secretary on 1 April 2015 and become a sole company secretary since 1
March 2019, mainly responsible for the daily affairs of the Board. Please refer to the “Senior Management” above of
the biography of Ms. Ruan.
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The Board recognizes the importance of good corporate governance in the management structure and internal control
procedures of the Group for the purpose of ensuring that all business activities of the Group and the decision-making
process are properly regulated and are in full compliance with the applicable laws and regulations.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had complied with the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code
(“CG Code”) as set forth in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the
Stock Exchange since 1 January 2020 up to and including 31 December 2020 except for code provision A.2.1.

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the chairman and chief executive should be separated and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Ruan Hongliang currently holds both positions. Throughout the Group’s
business history of over 22 years, Mr. Ruan has held the key leadership position of the Group and has been deeply involved
in the formulation of corporate strategies and management of business and operations of the Group. Taking into account
the consistent leadership within the Group and in order to enable more effective and efficient overall strategic planning
and continuation of the implementation of such plans, the Board considers that Mr. Ruan is the best candidate for both
positions and the present arrangements are beneficial and in the interest of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. Biographical
details of the Directors are set forth on pages 18 to 25 of this annual report.

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2020 were:
E «¢erieDit®co$
i i

Mr. Ruan Hongliang
Ms. Jiang Jinhua
Mr. Wei Yezhong
Mr. Shen Qifu

Independen Non-e «eux i e Di éc o $
i i i

Mr. Cui Xiaozhong
Ms. Hua Fulan
Mr. Ng Ki Hung

Mr. Ruan Hongliang, an executive Director and chairman of the Board, is the spouse of Ms. Jiang Jinhua, an executive
Director.

Ms. Ruan Zeyun, the Board secretary and the company secretary of the Company, is the daughter of Mr. Ruan Hongliang
and Ms. Jiang Jinhua. Mr. Zhao Xiaofei, a deputy general manager of the Company, is the spouse of Ms. Ruan Zeyun and
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The Board is responsible for the formulation of the overall strategies and objectives of the Group, monitoring and
evaluating operating and financial performance, reviewing the corporate governance measures and supervising of the
overall management of the Group. The Board is also responsible for developing, reviewing and monitoring policies and
practices on corporate governance and legal and regulatory compliance of the Group, and the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management. The senior management of the Group is responsible for
the implementation of business strategies and day-to-day operations of the Group under the leadership of the chairman
of the Group. The Directors have full access to all the information of the Group in relation to business operations and
financial performance of the Group. Senior management of the Group also reports to the Directors from time to time
regarding the business operations of the Group. Independent professional advice can be sought to assist the relevant
Directors to discharge their duties at the Group’s expense upon their request. Throughout the year ended 31 December
2020, all Directors are provided with monthly updates on the Company’s performance and financial position to enable
the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.

Mee ings and Di &c o § A endance Reco @

i i i
The Board meets regularly either in person or through electronic means of communication to discuss the overall strategy
as well as the operation and financial performance of the Group. The number of the Board meetings and general meetings
held and the attendance of each Director at these meetings for the year ended 31 December 2020 have been set out as
follows:

No. of a, endance/No. of mee ings
i {

S 4 egic Risk
Aadi Remuane 4 ion  Nomina ion De wloplmeu Managemen
Boad  Commi, ee Commlfy ee Commi, ee  Commi, ee Commi ee Gene 4l
mee ings mee }hgs mee }hgs mee ﬁlgs mee ﬁ]gs mee }hgs mee ings
EeerieDitcos$
Mr. Rtian Hongliang 17117 N/A 212 11 11 11 303
Ms. Jiang Jinhua 17117 N/A N/A N/A N/A 5e 354CS1 ¢s GS1 u7 rReL
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the shareholders of the Company and have exercised their duties
with care, skill and diligence, in pursuit of the development of the Group. Every newly appointed Director receives an
induction to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the business and operations of the Group and that he is fully
aware of his duties and responsibilities as a director under applicable rules and requirements.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2020, briefings and updates on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements in relation to continuous responsibilities of a Hong Kong listed company
and its directors and other relative compliance issues were provided and notified to each of the Directors during Board
meetings to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the following existing Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by attending briefings and updates, seminars, training, or reading materials on the following topics to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills:

Co po a e Regala o " Finance and Ind,.ls i
go ¢ fhance .-..lp(}a{yes acca.n ing .-..npda es

E aee..l i e Di ‘ec 0S8
Mr. Rtian Honghang 4 v v v
Ms. Jiang Jinhua v v 4 v
Mr. Wei Yezhong 4 v
Mr. Shen Fuquan 4 v

Independen Non-E «¢eu i e Di kc 0%

Mr. Cui Xlaozhong \ v
Ms. Hua Fulan

Mr. Ng Ki Hung

AN VAN
ANAN
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have played a significant role in the Board by bringing their independent judgment at
Board meetings and scrutinizing the Group’s performance. Their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decisions.
In particular, they bring an impartial view to bear on issues of the Group’s strategy, performance and control. All
independent non-executive Directors possess extensive academic, professional and industry expertise and management
experience and have provided their professional advice to the Board. The independent non-executive Directors provide
independent advice on the Group’s business strategy, results and management so that all interests of shareholders can
be taken into account, and the interests of the Company and its shareholders can be protected.

The Board has three independent non-executive Directors.

All of the current independent non-executive Directors have submitted their confirmation on independence in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the content of such confirmations, the Company considers that all the
existing independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with the Listing Rules.

BOARD PROCEEDINGS

In accordance with code provisions A.1.1 and A.1.3 of the CG Code, the Board shall hold at least four Board meetings
each year, to be convened by the chairman of the Board, and a notice of at least 14 days shall be given for a regular Board
meeting. Since 1 January 2020 up to and including 31 December 2020, 17 Board meetings were held with a notice of at
least 14 days having been given to the Directors in compliance with the relevant code provision.

The quorum for a Board meeting is at least half of the total number of the Directors (including Directors attending the
meeting on behalf of others) being present at the meeting. A Director may attend the Board meeting in person, or appoint
another Director in writing as his proxy to attend the Board meeting.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Articles of Association, a person may be appointed as a Director either by the shareholders in
general meeting or by the Board. Any Directors appointed by the Board as additional Directors or to fill casual vacancies
shall hold office until the next following general meeting, and are eligible for re-election by the shareholders. In addition,
all Directors are required to retire by rotation at least once every three years at the annual general meeting, and are eligible
for re-election by the shareholders.

During the year, there was no appointment of new Directors. The current term of the Directors is for a term of three years
ending on the expiration of the term of the 5th session of the Board.
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BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

The board of supervisors of the Company consists of five members. The employee representative supervisors, namely
Ms. Niu Liping and Ms. Zhang Huizhen, were elected by employees as the staff representative supervisors of the 5th
session of the supervisory committee of the Company. The other supervisors were elected by the shareholders of the
Company. The functions and duties of the board of supervisors include, but are not limited to: review the financial
operations of the Company; supervise the performance of Directors, general manager and senior executives of their duties
to the Company; request Directors, general manager and senior executives to rectify actions which are damaging to the
Company’s interests; examine financial information such as financial reports, business reports and profit distribution
plans as proposed by the Board to the general meeting, and if there are any queries, to engage certified public accountants
or practicing auditors to assist in the examination; propose the convening of extraordinary general meetings and motions
at the general meetings; conduct investigation if there are any unusual circumstances in the Company’s operations; and
exercising other rights given to them under the Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has taken out appropriate insurance coverage on Directors’, supervisors’ and senior management’s liabilities
in respect of legal actions taken against the same arising out of corporate activities.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the Company’s code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the (i) audit committee (the “Audit Committee”); (ii) remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”); (iii) nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”); (iv) strategic development committee (the
“Strategic Development Committee”); and (v) risk management committee (the “Risk Management Committee’), with
defined terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees, which explain their respective roles and the
authority delegated to them by the Board are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able
to seek independent professional advice and other assistance in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

Aadi Commi ee
i i

The Audit Committee was established on 16 October 2015. From 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020, members of the
Audit Committee comprised of Mr. Cui Xiaozhong, Ms. Hua Fulan and Mr. Ng Ki Hung, all of whom are independent
non-executive Directors. Mr. Cui Xiaozhong, who has appropriate professional qualification and experience in accounting
matter, was the chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee primarily assists the Board to review the financial
reporting process, evaluate the effectiveness of financial controls and oversee the auditing processes of the Group and
relationship with external auditors of the Group.

During FY2020, the Audit Committee held four meetings to review annual financial results and reports for the year ended
31 December 2019 and interim financial results and reports for the six months ended 30 June 2020. Matters reviewed during
the meetings included significant matters on the financial reporting, operational and compliance controls, effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems and internal audit function, scope of work and appointment of external
auditors, related parties transactions and arrangements for employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties. The
attendance records are set out under “Meetings and Directors Attendance Record” on page 27.

The Audit Committee is of the view that the preparation of the financial results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 complied with the applicable accounting standards and requirements and that adequate disclosure had
been made. The Audit Committee is also of the view that the internal control systems are effective and adequate based
on its review.

Remune % ion Commi ee
i il

The Remuneration Committee was established on 16 October 2015. From 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020, members
of the Remuneration Committee comprised of Mr. Cui Xiaozhong and Ms. Hua Fulan, independent non-executive
Directors, and Mr. Ruan Hongliang, an executive Director, and Mr. Cui Xiaozhong was the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include preparing assessment codes and evaluating the
senior management of the Group, determining and reviewing the terms of the remuneration packages of and determining
the award of bonuses to Directors and senior management. No Director takes part in any discussion on his or her own
remuneration.

During FY2020, the Remuneration Committee met twice to review, determine and make recommendation to the Board
on the remuneration policy and structure of the Company, the remuneration packages of the executive Directors and
senior management, assessing performance of executive Directors and other related matters. The attendance records are
set out under “Meetings and Directors Attendance Record” on page 27.
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Pursuant to code provision B1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of the members of the senior management (including
executive Directors) by band for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set forth below:

Inx he band of Nambe Tof Indi wd.rals
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During FY2020, the Nomination Committee held one meeting. For the details of members’ attendance of the Nomination
Committee meeting, please refer to page 27. The Nomination Committee also considered the Board Diversity Policy and
whether the Board had the appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives necessary to enhance
the effectiveness of the Board and to maintain high standards of corporate governance. After due consideration, the
Nomination Committee has concluded that based on the Company’s existing business model and specific needs, the
current composition of the Board satisfies the Board Diversity Policy for the Reporting Period.

S 4 egic De elopmen Commi_ ee
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The Strategic Development Committee was established on 16 October 2015. Since 1 January 2020, members of the
Strategic Development Committee comprised of Mr. Ruan Hongliang and Mr. Wei Yezhong, executive Directors, and
Mr. Cui Xiaozhong, an independent non-executive Director. The chairman of the Strategic Development Committee is
Mr. Ruan Hongliang, an executive Director. The primary duties of Strategic Development Committee are to study, advise
on and review the Company’s long-term development plans and strategies.

During FY2020, the Strategic Development Committee met once to discuss the business strategies of the Group and the
attendance records are set out under “Meetings and Directors Attendance Record” on page 27.

Risk Managemeni Commiivl ee

The Risk Management Committee was established on 16 October 2015. Since 1 January 2020, members of the Risk
Management Committee comprised of Mr. Ruan Hongliang and Ms. Jiang Jianhua, executive Directors, and Mr. Cui
Xiaozhong, an independent non-executive Director. The chairman of the Risk Management Committee is Mr. Ruan
Hongliang, an executive Director. The primary duties of the Risk Management Committee are to review the Group’s
business operations, especially on overseas and export business to supervise and control the Group’s sanctums-related
risks and to monitor and review the Group’s risk management and internal control systems and formulate our Group’s
risk management strategies.

During FY2020, the Risk Management Committee met once to discuss the risk associated with overseas and export business
of the Group and the attendance records are set out under “Meetings and Directors Attendance Record” on page 27.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. The Board
reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, and the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of Model Code, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to Rule 13.90 of the Listing Rules, the Company has posted its Articles of Association on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Company amended its Articles of Association on 9 October 2020
in response to the changed situation and actual needs of the Company where (i) the principal business of the Company
did not change but with a slightly enlarged business scope to cater to the business development of the Company, and
(ii) the description of the Company’s existing business scope were adjusted pursuant to the relevant requirements of the
electronic filing system of the local government.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company had prepared the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, which were
reviewed by the Audit Committee and external auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP
(OO0O0DO000000O0O@OO000) in the PRC. The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities in (i)
preparing the financial statements of the Group for each financial year with a view to ensure that such financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, and (ii) selecting suitable accounting policies and making
prudent and reasonable judgments and estimates for the preparation of the financial statements of the Group. The Board is
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP
(Ooo00oooboboO0@oobon), regarding their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 54 and 260 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Ruan Zeyun is the company secretary of the Company during the year under review. During FY2020, Ms. Ruan
had complied with the relevant professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The biographical

details of the company secretary are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” on page 25 in this annual report.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Company appointed Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP (D OO OO OOOOO @ OO
0 0O 0O)) in the PRC as the external auditor for the year ended 31 December 2020. The Audit Committee reviewed the
external auditors’ statutory audit scope and non-audit services and approved its fees.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total auditor’s remuneration was approximately RMB3,000,000, which Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP (D 0 OO OO0 O OO (@ OOOODO) charged the Group for
audit and assurance services. The remuneration of non-audit services was approximately RMB400,000.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on the selection and appointment of the external
auditors during the Reporting Period.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group has established risk management system and internal control system, and the internal audit department is
responsible for the internal audit function of the Group. The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective
internal control and risk management systems (the “Systems”’) over the Group’s asset and shareholders’ interests, as well
as for reviewing the Systems’ effectiveness. The Systems are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against misstatement or loss, and to manage risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems. The major controls of
the Systems include financial, operational and compliance controls, as well as an established organized structure with
clearly defined lines of responsibility and authority, which is designed to safeguard assets from inappropriate use,
maintain proper accounts and ensure compliance with regulations (including the handling and dissimilation of inside
information). In particular, regarding the controls for handling and dissemination of inside information, the employees,
senior management and the Directors of the Company who possesses or handles inside information are reminded of the
inside information requirements under the Listing Rules, the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws
of Hong Kong) and the requirements under other relevant laws and regulations. The Directors with the assistance of Ms.
Ruan Zeyun, the company secretary of the Company, and the internal audit department of the Company, are responsible
to ensure the inside information, if any, is kept confidential and dissimilate to the public to avoid a false market in the
listed shares of the Company. The Company may also seek professional advice to consider the dissimilation of inside
information to be public as and when necessary to ensure the Company will comply with the requirements under Listing
Rules, the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) and the requirements under other
relevant laws and regulations.

The Board, being responsible for the reviewing the effectiveness of the Systems, together with the Audit Committee and
internal audit team, regularly assess the effectiveness of the Systems, and ensures that the management has discharged
its duty by establishing and maintaining effective and adequate Systems. The process used to review the effectiveness of
the Systems includes carrying testing and sampling, and in case if material internal control defects have been detected,
re-testing and resampling would be carried out to ensure the Systems are effective and adequate.

For FY2020, the Audit Committee and the Group’s internal audit team, with the assistance of the management of the
Group, conducted a review of the Systems and assessed the effectiveness of the Systems by taking into account the reviews
by its auditor. Based on the above review, the Board considers that the Group has fully complied with provisions of the
CG Code regarding the Systems in general for FY2020, and the Group’s Systems are generally appropriate, effective
and adequate.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

@)

(ii)

Pa "icipa ion a gene 4l mee ings
i i i i

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for direct communication between the Board and
the shareholders. The Company encourages participation of its shareholders through annual general meetings and
other general meetings where shareholders meet and exchange views with the Board, and to exercise their right
to vote at meetings. The Company shall arrange notices of meetings and circulars containing details on proposed
resolutions to be sent to the shareholders no less than 20 business days before the annual general meeting and 15
business days before the extraordinary general meeting. At general meetings, separate resolutions are proposed on
each substantial issue, including the election of individual Directors.

Con ening e {\ a0 '('iina)_" gene 4l mee ings
i

According to the Articles of Association, any shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding more than 10% of
the Company’s total voting shares (inclusive) may sign one or several written requests with the same format and
content to propose to the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting or class general meeting, and specify
the topics of the meeting. The Board shall convene an extraordinary or class general meeting within 10 days after
receipt of the aforesaid written request. The aforesaid amount of shareholding is calculated with reference to the
date on which the shareholder(s) makes the written request.

If the Board cannot or fails to convene a general meeting, the board of supervisors of the Company shall duly
convene such meeting and preside. If the board of supervisors of the Company also cannot or fails to convene and
preside over a general meeting, the shareholders individually or jointly holding more than 10% of the Company’s
shares for more than 90 consecutive days may by themselves convene and preside over a general meeting, the
procedure for convening such meeting shall, to the extent possible, be the same as the procedure for convening a
general meeting by the board of directors.

Where shareholders convene and preside over a meeting because the Board fails to convene the meeting pursuant
to the aforesaid request, reasonable expenses incurred shall be borne by the Company.

(iii) P dcedw €s fo "pu ing fq,” a d p Oposals a a gene 4l mee ing
i i i

According to the articles of association of the Company, any shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding more
than 3% of the Company’s shares may submit a written provisional motion to the convener 10 business days before
a general meeting is convened, and the convener shall issue a supplementary notice of the shareholders’ meeting
announcing the contents of the supplementary motion(s) within two days after receipt of the said motion(s).
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The Company is devoted to developing and maintaining continuous relationship and effective communications with
shareholders and investors. To strengthen relationships and enhance communications, the Company has established the
following communication channels:

(i) An occasion shall be arranged for shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting for putting forward
their opinions and exchanging views with the Board. Directors shall be present in person at the annual general

meeting and answer shareholders’ questions;

(i1) Where possible, the interim performance and yearly performance shall be issued early to enable shareholders of
the Company to better understood the performance and business operations of the Group;

(iii) The Company also publishes all corporate correspondence on the Company’s website www.flatgroup.com.cn; and

(iv) Shareholders may raise any enquiries and proposals to the Board by either directly raising questions at general
meetings or providing written notice of such enquiries or proposals for the attention of Ms. Ruan Zeyun, the company
secretary, at the principal place of business of the Company situated at 1999 Yunhe Road, Xiuzhou District, Jiaxing,
Zhejiang Province, PRC or via e-mail to flat@flatgroup.com.cn.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report for the Reporting Period has been published individually on 29
March 2021.
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The Directors are pleased to present this annual report and audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
FY2020.
REGISTERED OFFICE, HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
The Company was established in the PRC and has its registered office and headquarters at 1999 Yunhe Road, Xiuzhou
District, Jiaxing, Zhejiang Province, the PRC. Its principal place of business in Hong Kong is Unit 6, 11/F, Prosperity Place
6 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Tong Kowloon, Hong Kong (effective from 15 June 2020).
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and sale of photovoltaic glass products, float glass products,
architectural glass products, household glass products and other types of relevant products in the PRC. The principal
activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note (VI) 40 to the financial statements.
LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES
Please refer to note V to the financial statements in this annual report for details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for FY2020 and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 58 to 69 of this annual report.

The Group’s business review during FY2020 and material factors underlying its results and financial position are set out
in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the Group are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the latest five financial years is set
out on page 6 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for FY2020.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during FY2020 are set out in note (VI) 14 to the
financial statements.
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DIVIDEND AND DIVIDEND POLICY

The payment and the amount of any dividends, if paid, will depend on the Group’s results of operations, cash flows,
financial condition, statutory and regulatory restrictions on such payment of dividends, future prospects and other
factors that the Company may consider relevant. The declaration, payment and amount of dividends will be subject
to the Company’s discretion. Dividends may be paid only out of the Group’s distributable profits as permitted under
the relevant laws. To the extent profits are distributed as dividends, such portion of profits will not be available to be
reinvested in the Group’s operations. There can be no assurance that we will be able to declare or distribute any dividend
in the amount set out in any plan of the Board or at all. The Board intends to recommend at the relevant Shareholders
meeting an annual dividend of no less than 20% of the Company’s profit for the year available for distribution to the
Shareholders, after taking into consideration the factors described above in the foreseeable future.

In order to share the achievement of the Group in 2020 with all our shareholders, the Board has recommended a final
dividend of RMBO.15 per share, subject to shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Charitable donations made by the Group during FY2020 amounted to RMB3,371,547.10 (FY2019: RMB45,000).
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACED BY THE GROUP

The following sets out the key risks and uncertainties faced by the Group. It is a non-exhaustive list and there may be
other risks and uncertainties further to the key risk areas outlined below. Besides, this annual report does not constitute a
recommendation or an advice for anyone to invest in the securities of the Company and investors are advised to make their
own judgment or consult their own investment advisors before making any investment in the securities of the Company.

Risks pe "aining_ o_he PV glass indus "
i (9 iy

The Group derived a majority of its revenue from its sales of PV glass. During FY2020, the revenue generated from the
sales of PV glass amount to RMB5,225.67 million, representing 83.47% of the total revenue of the Group. In recent years,
the global PV industry has experienced fluctuations in terms of production output and prices of PV modules. In addition,
some PV module manufacturers faced severe financial difficulties which impacted the business of PV component makers,
including PV glass manufacturers. Some PV module manufacturers were not able to satisfy their payment obligations
towards their suppliers, which in turn resulted in the suspension of the business operations of a number of PV glass
manufacturers in China. In the past, the Group also had experienced customer defaults. Furthermore, the demand for
PV glass generally depends on the demand for PV modules, which is subject to a number of macroeconomic and factors
outside the control of PV glass manufacturers. The demand for solar energy also depends on the overall demand for
electricity and the overall social and governmental support for the use of renewable energy. If there is any significant
decrease in the demand for solar energy or investments in the PV industry, the demand and the prices of PV glass will
decrease accordingly. Such decreases could be substantial and could result in significant excessive supply. Any market
downturn, over-supply or fluctuations in the PV industry or financial difficulties faced by PV module manufacturers
could have a material adverse impact on the business, financial condition and results of operations of the Group.
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The Group is subject to various PRC environmental laws and regulations for the production and sales of its PV glass,
float glass, household glass and architectural glass products, which impose standards on the emission and treatment of
pollutants created during the manufacturing process, and are required to obtain environmental protection assessment
approval and acceptance from the relevant government authorities in the PRC for the operation of the production
facilities. The Group is also subject to various PRC laws and regulations in relation to its mine. As a result, the Group is
required to obtain permits, licenses and consents, such as the mining permit for its mining activities and the production
safety permit for its manufacturing operations. Any unfavorable changes in the scope of these laws and regulations, or
application and interpretation of these laws and regulations, may limit or restrict its production capacity or ability or
its manufacturing operation, or increase the costs in pollution control or safety improvement, or otherwise increase its
cost, which may materially and adversely affect the Group’s business and operations. If the Group fails to comply with
the laws and regulations, it may be penalized for non-compliance and may materially and adversely affect its business,
operations and financial results.

Pas,L pe fo nance and fq," a ‘d-looking S\ ai emen,L S
The performance and the results of operation of the Group as set out in this annual report are historical in nature and
past performance is not a guarantee of future performance. This annual report may contain forward-looking statements
and opinions that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results may also differ materially from expectations discussed
in such forward-looking statements and opinions. Neither the Group nor the Directors, employees or agents of the
Group assume any obligations or liabilities in the event that any of the forward-looking statements or opinions does not
materialize or turns out to be incorrect.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group’s operations are subject to current environmental laws, rules and regulations enacted by the Chinese government,
including the Environmental Protection Law of the PRCO (D OO0 OO OODODODOOO), the Law on Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution of the PRCO (DO OO OO OOOOOO DN ), the Law on Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes of the PRCO (U 0 U000 OO OOOOOODODOOOOO) and the Law on
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollutiond (U D OO O0OOO0OOOOOOON).

One of our major pollutants produced from our production is nitrogen oxides and sulphur dioxide. In order to be a
socially responsible manufacturer, the Company has installed environmental protection and energy-saving equipment
to minimize the impact on the environment from its production, including flue-gas desulphurization facility, flue-gas
denitration facility, residual heat power generator and emissions monitoring system. The Company also monitors, through
the emissions monitoring system, whether it satisfies the PRC standards on exhaust gas emissions. The Company was
accredited with ISO14001:2004 for its environmental management system relating to the production processes of PV
glass. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company complied with applicable environmental rules and regulations.

In recognition of the Company’s continuous efforts in environmental protection and energy saving, the China Building
Materials Federation* ([ [J [ [0 [J O 0 [J [0 ), China Concrete Association® ([J [ [I [J [0 [ ), China Architectural Land
Industrial Glass Association* (L 0O OO0 OO OO OO O O ) and China Construction Health Ceramics Association®
(DOOO0OO0OO0O00O0ODO) awarded the Company with “Advanced Exemplary Enterprise for Energy Conservation and
Emission Reduction in the Concrete Glass Ceramics Industry of the PRC* (D 0 0 00 O00OO0OOOOOOOOO0O
[0 [0)” in October 2015.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS
Empl}o ees

The Group maintains a good relationship with its employees and provides trainings to employees. New joiners must attend
mandatory in-house training. Furthermore, employees may attend external trainings such as trainings for manufacturing
management, quality control management and human resource management. Remuneration of employees is reviewed
periodically by reference to the market rate. After considering performance of the Group and job performance of specific
employees, the Group may pay them discretionary bonus.

The Group makes contributions for its employees in relation to the mandatory social security funds including pension,
work-related injury insurance, maternity insurance, medical and unemployment insurance and housing provident fund
contributions in the PRC.

Sapplie §

The main raw materials of the Group include fuel, silica sand and soda ash. The Group does not rely on any one single
raw material supplier. The Group generally enters into legally binding long-term agreements with its fuel and silica sand
suppliers in order to ensure smooth production operation.

Aggregate purchases from the Group’s largest and five largest suppliers accounted for 8.31% and 36.31%, respectively,
of the Group’s total purchases for FY2020.

Gas ome $
i

The Group has established and maintained strong and stable relationships with its customers, with a majority of the top
ten customers having had a relationship of five years or above with the Group. The Group’s PV glass customers are
primarily domestic and overseas PV module manufacturers, whereas its float glass customers are primarily domestic
and overseas glass processing manufacturers and domestic glass wholesalers. In addition, the Group sells household
glass products to domestic and overseas furniture manufacturers and processing companies and multinational furniture
retailers, and sell architectural glass products to domestic and overseas architectural contractors, domestic architectural
glass processing companies and domestic construction companies.

During FY2020, aggregate sales to the Group’s largest and five largest customers accounted for 18.13% and 59.20%,
respectively, of the Group’s total revenue for the year.

At no time during the Reporting Period under review had the Directors, the supervisors of the Company and their close
associates or any shareholder of the Company (who or which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Since the Company is established and conducts its operations mainly in the PRC, its H shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange, and subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2020. A shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
During FY2020 and up to the date of this annual report, the Company had materially complied with the relevant laws
and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong including relating to its establishment and operations, and the rules of the
relevant Stock Exchange.
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BANK BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 are set out in note (VI) 20, 28
and 29 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during FY2020 are set out in note (VI) 33 to the financial
statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020 and at all times up to the date of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and the laws of the PRC, the Company is not subject to any pre-emptive rights
requiring it to propose new issues to its existing shareholders in proportion to their shareholdings.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF OUR COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

CSRC Main Board Issuance Approval Committee (U OO O OO0 DO OOOODODO) reviewed the application of the
Company for the proposed issuance of A share convertible bonds on 9 January 2020. According to the result of the
review published on the website of CSRC, the Company’s application for the proposed issuance of A share convertible
bonds has been approved and written approval from CSRC was received by the Company. Such public issuance of A
Share convertible bonds was in an aggregate par value of RMB1.45 billion with a term of six years; The issuance of
A share convertible bonds was completed in June 2020. The A share convertible bonds under this issuance were with
a nominal value of RMB100 and issued at par. The subscription funds for the A share convertible bonds under this
issuance totaled RMB1,450,000,000.00. After deducting the issuance fee of RMBS,578,301.90, the net funds raised were
RMB1,441,421,698.10. As at the date of redemption registration (29 January 2021), the Company’s A Share convertible
bonds in the accumulated nominal value of RMB1,447,297,00 had been converted into the Shares of the Company,
representing 99.81% of total A Share convertible bonds issued; and the number of Shares converted by such convertible
bonds is 107,048,107 Shares, representing 5.48% of the total issued Shares of the Company before conversion (2 December
2020), of which 107,048,107 Shares were converted during the period from 3 December 2020 to 29 January 2020. Since
1 February 2021, the A Share convertible bonds has ceased trading and share conversion, and the outstanding A Share
convertible bonds of RMB2,703,000 has been frozen. According to the data provided by CSDC Shanghai Branch, 27,030
convertible bonds were redeemed by the Company, at a total redemption amount of RMB2,710,406.22, which was paid on
1 February 2021. The Company’s “Flat Convertible Bonds” (bond code:113035) (conversion code:191035) was delisted
on Shanghai Stock Exchange on 1 February 2021.
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The total net proceeds from the public issuance of A share convertible bonds by the Company amounted to approximately
RMB1,441.4 million. As at 31 December 2020, the use of such proceeds were as follows:

Pe ‘¢cen age of Ameaan of Ameuan Ameuan
Use fo " ne p oceeds ne p 'oceeds ol ilized €main
& RMB million ~ RMB million ~ RMB million

Annual production of 750,000 tons
of photovoltaic module cover glass project 100% 1,441.4 844.8 596.6

The Company aims to further expand the capacity of its core products PV glass and maintain its leading technology and
scale advantage while enhancing the capital strength and meeting working capital requirements of the Company. On
12 June 2020 and 15 July 2020, the Board has approved the proposed non-public issuance of A shares and its revised
version and also approved by shareholders at the 2020 first extraordinary general meeting, the 2020 second A share
class meeting and the 2020 second H share class meeting held on 10 August 2020. On 12 October 2020, the Issuance
Approval Committee of the CSRC conducted a review of the Company’s application for Non-public Issuance of A Shares.
Pursuant to the results of the review, the Company’s application for Non-public Issuance of A Shares was approved. On
18 January 2021, the Company completed the Non-public Issuance with the issuance of 84,545,147 Shares in total at issue
price of RMB29.57 per Share. The total proceeds from the non-public issuance of A shares is RMB2,499,999,996.79.
After deducting the underwriting fee and other issuance fee (excluding value-added tax) of RMB16,918,053.10, the net
funds raised were RMB2,483,081,943.69. The selection of subscribers under the non-public issuance is fair and just,
in line with the interests of the Company and its Shareholders as a whole, in accordance with the requirements of the
relevant laws and regulations including the Administrative Measures for the Issuance of Securities by Listed Companies,
Measures for the Administration of the Offering and Underwriting of Securities and Detailed Implementation Rules for
the Private Placement by Listed Companies, as well as the issuance plan reported to the CSRC. In selection of subscribers,
the Company followed the market-oriented principle to ensure the fairness and justice of the process of issuance and
selection of subscribers, which is in the interest of Flat and its shareholders as a whole.

The total proceeds from the non-public issuance of A shares of the Company will not exceed RMB2,500 million (inclusive).
The proceeds after deducting relevant issuance expenses will be used as follows:

Unit: RMB’0,000

To al planned P oposed

¥ amaean of amean of

No. Use fo " in es n%er% p 'oceeds

1 Phase II of PV glass as covers with an annual production 163,260.98 140,000.00
capacity of 750,000 tons project

2 PV backplane glass with an annual production capacity of 53,860.12 35,000.00
42 million square meters project

3 Working capital 75,000.00 75,000.00

Toi al 292,121.10 250,000.00

Note: As at 31 December 2020, the Company had not received proceeds of non-public issuance of A shares, thus actual amount utilized is uncertain.”
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Except as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities since 1 January 2020 up to and including 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this annual report, the Directors and Supervisors of the
Company in office are shown as below:

E ¢cuiedieco§
i i

Mr. Ruan Hongliang (Chairman of the Board of Directors)
Ms. Jiang Jinhua

Mr. Wei Yezhong

Mr. Shen Qifu

Independen non-e «¢eu i edi €c o $
i i i

Mr. Cui Xiaozhong
Ms. Hua Fulan
Mr. Ng Ki Hung

S.ipe "wso $

Mr. Zheng Wenrong (Chairman of the Board of Supervisors)
Mr. Shen Fuquan

Mr. Zhu Quanming

Ms. Niu Liping

Ms. Zhang Huizhen

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that all of the independent non-executive Directors
are independent of the Company.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors, supervisors and senior management of the Company are set out on pages 18 to 25 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS THAT
ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE GROUP’S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and its
controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries, was a party, or in which a Director or supervisors of the Company
and an entity connected to any of the Directors or supervisors of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the Reporting Period.
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SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

All the Directors retired and were re-elected at 2018 First extraordinary general meeting for a term of three years ending
on the expiration of the term of the 5th session of the Board, subject to his or her retirement and re-election at annual
general meeting in accordance with the Articles of Association. Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company and each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment
in November 2018 with a term of three years which will expire in November 2021.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or supervisors of the Company has entered into any service contract with

the Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors, supervisors and the chief executive of the
Company in the shares (the “Shares”), underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest or short positions which the
Directors or the chief executive were taken or deemed to have under such provisions) and the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code’) contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

App 9 dma e

App 0 dma e pe ‘¢en agelof
pe ‘¢en agelof sha %holﬁing in
sha ‘éholhing in  he oalsha '

Nambe of _he ‘¢éle wn Lol éapi, al of
Sha ¢holde " Sha és held Class Naot € of in e & clas$ of Sha &sY  he Comp‘a{,l @
Directors
Mr. Ruan Hongliang® 1,118,772,000 A Shares Beneficial owner and 70.31% 54.81%
parties acting in concert
779,000 H Shares Beneficial owner and 0.17% 0.04%
parties acting in concert
Ms. Jiang Jinhua® 1,118,772,000 A Shares Beneficial owner and 70.31% 54.81%
parties acting in concert
779,000  H Shares Parties acting in concert 0.17% 0.04%
Mr. Wei Yezhong 17,334,000 A Shares Beneficial owner 1.09% 0.85%
Mr. Shen Qifu 11,556,000 A Shares Beneficial owner 0.73% 0.57%
Supervisors
Mr. Zheng Wenrong 52,002,000 A Shares Beneficial owner 3.27% 2.55%
Mr. Shen Fuquan 34,668,000 A Shares Beneficial owner 2.18% 1.70%
Mr. Zhu Quanming 34,668,000 A Shares Beneficial owner 2.18% 1.70%
Notes:

(1) The calculation is based on the total number of 1,591,248,788 A Shares or 450,000,000 H Shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2020.

2) The calculation is based on the total number of 1,591,248,788 A Shares and the total number of 450,000,000 H Shares (i.e. a total of 2,041,248,788 Shares) in issue
as at 31 December 2020.

3) Mr. Ruan Hongliang is the spouse of Ms. Jiang Jinhua. As at 31 December 2020, Mr. Ruan Hongliang owns 439,358,400 A Shares and 419,000 H Shares. Ms. Jiang
Jinhua owns 324,081,600 A Shares. Ms. Ruan Zeyun is the spouse of Mr. Zhao Xiaofei, and the daughter of Mr. Ruan Hongliang and Ms. Jiang Jinhua. Ms. Ruan
Zeyun owns 350,532,000 A Shares and 360,000 H Shares. Mr. Zhao Xiaofei owns 4,800,000 A Shares. In addition, pursuant to a concert party agreement dated 19
September 2016 entered into among Mr. Ruan Hongliang, Ms. Jiang Jinhua, Ms. Ruan Zeyun and Mr. Zhao Xiaofei, each of Mr. Ruan Hongliang, Ms. Jiang Jinhua,
Ms. Ruan Zeyun and Mr. Zhao Xiaofei is considered to be interested in 1,118,772,000 A Shares and 779,000 H Shares under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, to the knowledge of the Company, none of the Directors or supervisors
and the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed under the SFO to have any interests or short positions in any
of the Shares or the underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which was required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2020, the persons or corporations, other than the Directors, supervisors and the chief executive of the
Company, who had an interest or short position in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company which
were required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

App 9 4ma e
pe Cen age of
sha ‘¢holding in

App 0 4dma e
pe ‘¢en age of
sha %holﬁing in
,he o alsha @

Nambe "of Na.a € of ,he ‘¢le wn : Eapi al of
Sha ¢holde " Sha s held Iule &s Nast € of In e s class of Sha es® _he Compla{; @
Ms. Ruan Zeyun® 1,118,772,000 A Shares Beneficial owner and parties 70.31% 54.81%
acting in concert
779,000 H Shares 0.17% 0.04%
Mr. Zhao Xiaofei® 1,118,772,000 A Shares Beneficial owner and parties 70.31% 54.81%
acting in concert
779,000 H Shares 0.17% 0.04%
Citigroup Inc.® 40,045,471(L) H Shares Interest of controlled 8.89%(L) 1.96% (L)
corporation
19,801,999(S) 4.40%(S) 0.97% (S)
19,965,839(P) 4.43%(P) 0.98% (P)
JPMorgan Chase & Co.?® 35,971,687(L) H Shares Interest of controlled 7.99%(L) 1.76% (L)
corporation
8,420,290(S) 1.87%(S) 0.41%(S)
9,603,217(P) 2.13%(P) 0.47%(P)
Pacific Asset Management Co., 31,525,000(L) H Shares investment manager 7.01%(L) 1.54%(L)
Ltd.
Shanghai Greenwoods Asset 27,042,000(L) H Shares investment manager 6.01% 1.32%
Management Company
Limited®
Xizang Jingning Corporate 27,042,000(L) H Shares Interest of controlled 6.01% 1.32%
Management Company corporation
Limited®
CICC Pucheng Investment Co., 23,870,000(L) H Shares Beneficial interest 5.30% 1.17%

Ltd.
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App 9 dma e pe ‘¢en agelof
pe ‘¢ten agelof sha %holﬁing in
sha ¢holdingin  he o alsha @&

Nambe “of Nana € of . he @le wn : Eapi al of

Sha ¢holde " Sha &s held Inle s Nant € of In e &s class of Sha &s . he Comﬁav @

The Bank of New York Mellon 22,807,660(L) H Shares Interest of controlled 5.07%(L) 1.12%(L)
Corporation'” corporation

20,649,660(P) 4.59%(P) 1.01% (P)

China International Capital 22,573,000(L) H Shares Interest of controlled 5.02% 1.11%
Corporation Limited® corporation

Notes:

(H

2

3)

(C)

(5)

(6)
(N

(©)

The calculation is based on the total number of 1,591,248,788 A Shares or 450,000,000 H Shares, as the case may be, in issue as at 31 December 2020.

The calculation is based on the total number of 1,591,248,788 A Shares and the total number of 450,000,000 H Shares (i.e. a total of 2,041,248,788 Shares) in issue
as at 31 December 2020.

Mr. Ruan Hongliang is the spouse of Ms. Jiang Jinhua. As at 31 December 2020, Mr. Ruan Hongliang owns 439,358,400 A Shares and 419,000 H Shares. Ms.
Jiang Jinhua owns 324,081,600 A Shares. Ms. Ruan Zeyun is the spouse of Mr. Zhao Xiaofei, the daughter of Mr. Ruan Hongliang and Ms. Jiang Jinhua. Ms. Ruan
Zeyun owns 350,532,000 A Shares and 360,000 H Shares. Mr. Zhao Xiaofei owns 4,800,000 A Shares. In addition, pursuant to a concert party agreement dated 19
September 2016 entered into among Mr. Ruan Hongliang, Ms. Jiang Jinhua, Ms. Ruan Zeyun and Mr. Zhao Xiaofei, each of Mr. Ruan Hongliang, Ms. Jiang Jinhua,
Ms. Ruan Zeyun and Mr. Zhao Xiaofei jointly owned 1,118,772,000 A Shares and 779,000 H Shares under the SFO.

Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc. and Citicorp LLC are owed as to 100% by Citigroup Inc., Citibank N. A. is owed as to 100% by Citicorp LLC. Citigroup
Financial Products Inc. is owed as to 100% by Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc. Citigroup Global Markets Inc is owed as to 100% by Citigroup Financial
Products Inc.. Citigroup Global Markets Europe Finance Limited is owed as to 100% by Citigroup Financial Products Inc.. Citigroup Global Markets (International)
Finance GmbH is owed as to 100% by Citigroup Global Markets Europe Finance Limited. Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Bahamas Limited is owed as to 50.21%
by Citigroup Global Markets (International) Finance GmbH. Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Bahamas Limited is owed as to 49.62% by Citigroup Financial
Products Inc.. Citigroup Global Markets Limited is owed as to 100% by Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Bahamas Limited.

JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association is owed as to 100% by JPMorgan Chase & Co.. J.P. Morgan International Finance Limited and JPMORGAN CHASE
BANK, N.A. - LONDON BRANCH are owed as to JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association. J.P. MORGAN CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED is owed as to
100% by J.P. Morgan International Finance Limited. J.P. MORGAN SECURITIES PLC is owed as to 100% by J.P. MORGAN CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED.
JPMorgan Chase Holdings LLC is owed as to 100% by JPMorgan Chase & Co.. J.P. Morgan Broker-Dealer Holdings Inc and JPMorgan Asset Management
Holdings Inc. are owed as to 100% by JPMorgan Chase Holdings LLC. J.P. Morgan Securities LLC is owed as to 100% by J.P. Morgan Broker-Dealer Holdings
Inc.. JPIMORGAN ASSET MANAGEMENT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED is owed as to 100% by JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings Inc.. JPIMORGAN
ASSET MANAGEMENT (UK) LIMITED is owed as to 100% by JPMORGAN ASSET MANAGEMENT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED. China International Fund
Management Co., Ltd. is owed as to 49% by JPMORGAN ASSET MANAGEMENT (UK) LIMITED. JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia) Inc is owed as to 100%
by JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings Inc.. JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia Pacific) Limited is owed as to 99.99% by JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia)
Inc and JPMorgan Asset Management (Taiwan) Limited is owed as to 100% by JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia) Inc.

Shanghai Greenwoods Asset Management Company Limited is owed as to 100% by Xizang Jingning Corporate Management Company Limited.

The Bank of New York Mellon is owed as to 100% by The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation.

China International Capital Corporation (Hong Kong) Limited is owed as to 100% by China International Capital Corporation Limited. CICC Financial Holdings
Limited is owed as to 100% by China International Capital Corporation (Hong Kong). CICC Financial Trading Limited is owed as to 100% by CICC Financial Holdings

Limited. CICC Pucheng Investment Co., Ltd. is owed as to 100% by China International Capital Corporation Limited. China International Capital Corporation Hong
Kong Securities Limited is owed as to 100% by China International Capital Corporation (Hong Kong) Limited.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, so far as is known to the Directors, there is no other person (other than
the Directors, supervisors or the chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group were entered into or in existence during the year ended 31 December 2020.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note IX to the financial statements, no contract of significance to which the Company, or any of its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or supervisor of the Company
or an entity connected with a Director or supervisor had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions in relation to the emoluments of Directors, Supervisors and employees are connected
transactions exempt from reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to
Rule 14A.95 of the Listing Rules. Save for the continuing connected transactions as disclosed in “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below, the related party transactions conducted during the year under review as disclosed in note IX to
the financial statement of the Group were either transactions not falling under the definition of connected transaction
or continuing connected transactions as defined in chapter 14A of the Listing Rules or connected transactions exempt
from reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76 of the
Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note IX to the financial statements also constituted continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules and are required to be disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14 A of the Listing Rules.

Connec ed pe Sons

i
Jiaxing Yihe Investment Co., Limited (“U 0 0O O OO0 OO O ) (*Jiaxing Yihe”) is wholly-owned by Ms. Ruan
Zeyun, one of the controlling shareholders of the Company and daughter of Mr. Ruan Hongliang (the chairman and

executive Director of the Company) and Ms. Jiang Jinhua (an executive Director), thus an associate of Ms. Ruan Zeyun
and a connected person of the Company under Rule 14A.07 of the Listing Rules.
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Connec ed, ‘ansac ion
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On 11 December 2019, the Company, as tenant, entered into the tenancy agreement with Jiaxing Yihe, as landlord,
pursuant to which Jiaxing Yihe agreed to lease premises to the Company for a term of one year commencing from
1 January 2020 and ending on 31 December 2020 at the rent of 685,199.76 per month. The three connected 6-storey
M-shaped buildings will be used as dormitories for the Group’s employees, and two 5-storey factories will be used as the
Group’s temporary maintenance, assembling and storage of equipment. The rent payable under tenancy agreement was
determined by the parties after arm’s length negotiations with reference to, among other things, the prevailing market
rental price of comparable properties in close proximity to Premises for similar use in Jiaxing City, in particular those
in the same industrial park.

Independen Non-e w61 i ¥ Di éc o § Confi fma ion

{ i { {
The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed these continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
such transactions were:

(1) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2) conducted either on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the Shareholders as a whole.

Auxdi 0 s Confi fma ion
i i

The Company’s auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP(U OO0 000000 O@OO0O

0 O)), was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its
unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Group in this annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors and their associates had any interest in any competing business with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2020.

COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of Mr. Ruan Hongliang, Ms. Jiang Jinhua and Ms. Ruan Zeyun has confirmed to the Company that he/she has complied
with the non-competition undertaking given by them to the Company pursuant to the deed of non-competition dated 16
October 2015. The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed the status of compliance and
enforcement of the non-competition undertaking and confirmed that all the undertakings thereunder have been complied
with throughout the period from 1 January 2020 up to and including 31 December 2020.

FLAT GLASS GROUP CO., LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020



ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2020 were rights to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or supervisors of the Company or their respective spouses or
minor children, or were such rights exercised by them, or was the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or supervisors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures) of the Company or any other body corporate.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group abides by the laws and regulations in relation to employee benefits and retirement planning promulgated by
the Chinese government. Details of the Group’s retirement plans are set out in note (VI) 25 to the financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company was not engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material importance
and no litigation or claim of material importance is known to the Directors to be pending or threatened against the Company.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Please refer to “Management Discussion and Analysis — Update on issuance of new H shares” for details.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company had reviewed together with the Board and external auditors the accounting standards
and practices adopted by the Group and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP will be the only auditor auditing the Company’s financial
statements in accordance with the CASBE and undertaking the role of international auditors in compliance with the
Listing Rules. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 have been audited by Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP (0D D OO0 00O O0OO@OOOOO).

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP (U O O OO OO0 OO (OO OO O O) will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. A resolution
for the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP (U0 OO O OO0 OO O
U 00 0)) as auditors of the Group is to be proposed at the annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

R.an Hongliang
Chairman

Jiaxing, Zhejiang, the PRC
29 March 2021
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The current session of the board of supervisors of the Company (the “Board of Supervisors”) is comprised of five
supervisors, namely Mr. Zheng Wenrong, Mr. Shen Fuquan, Mr. Zhu Quanming, Ms. Niu Liping and Ms. Zhang Huizhen.

In the year ended 31 December 2020, for the Company’s long-term interests and shareholders’ interests, the Board
of Supervisors acted in strict compliance with relevant laws, regulations, rules, regulatory documents, the Articles of
Association and the Listing Rules and earnestly performed their duties of supervision over the activities of the Directors
and senior management of the Company. The major works performed by of the Board of Supervisors are presented below:

I.

II.

MEETINGS CONDUCTED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

In the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board of Supervisors convened 14 meetings.

WORK OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

The work of the Supervisory Committee during the year ended 31 December 2020 mainly includes the following:

1.

Moni o fing implemen a ion of €sola ions of gene 4l mee ings
i il i i

The Board of Supervisors exercised supervision and inspection of the implementation of the resolutions of
the general meetings by the Board and the senior management through observation and attendance at Board
meetings and general meetings. The Board of Supervisors considers that the Board and the senior management
have diligently performed their duties in compliance with the resolutions of the general meetings. No violation
of any laws or regulations or the Articles of Association or any act which jeopardizes the interests of the
Company or shareholders’ interests of the Company has been found within the performance of the Board and
the senior management of the Company.

Moni o ing legal compliance of he G aap’s gene 4l ope 4 ion
i i i

The Board of Supervisors of the Company exercised supervision on a regular basis over the legal compliance,
rationality of the Group’s general operation, management of its general ordinary work and the work performance
of the Board and senior management. The Board of Supervisors considers that the general operation of the
Group is sound and rational, which has also complied with all applicable laws, regulations, rules and the Articles
of Association. The members of the Board and the senior management of the Company have conscientiously
and diligently performed their duties, and none of their actions will harm the interests of the Company or the
shareholders of the Company.

Moni o fing dajl ope 4 ing ac i vies of he G Gup

i Y i (A i
The Board of Supervisors of the Company exercised supervision over the operating activities of the Group.
The Board of Supervisors considers that the Company has already established a sound internal control system,
and has made a huge progress in the formulation and implementation of its internal work procedures, thus
effectively controlled its exposure to various operating risks. The operation of the Group is in compliance
with the PRC laws and regulations and the Articles of Association.

FLAT GLASS GROUP CO., LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020



4. Moni o ing he G ‘auap’s financial condi ions
i i i

The Board of Supervisors has reviewed the Group’s 2020 consolidated financial statements, supervised and
monitored the Group’s implementation of relevant financial policies and legislations as well as details of the
Group’s assets, financial income and expenditure. It is of the opinion that the Group’s 2020 consolidated
financial statements truly and completely reflect the financial position and operating results of the Group.

Zheng Wen ong
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors

Jiaxing, Zhejiang, the PRC
29 March 2021
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(De Shi Bao (Shen) Zi (21) No. P01566

TO ALL THE SHAREHOLDERS OF FLAT GLASS GROUP CO., LTD.

AUDIT OPINION

We have audited the attached financial statements of Flat Glass Group Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as “Flat
Group”), including the consolidated and parent company’s balance sheet as at 31 December 2020, the consolidated
and parent company’s income statement, the consolidated and parent company’s statement of cash flow, the
consolidated and parent company’s statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and notes to the financial statements
in 2020.

In our opinion, the attached financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting standards
for business enterprises in all material aspects, and have given a fair view of the consolidated and parent company’s
financial position as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated and parent company’s operating results and
consolidated and parent company’s cash flow in 2020.

BASIS FOR FORMING AUDIT OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Chinese standards on auditing for certified public accountants.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our audit report. We are independent of the Flat Group in
accordance with the code of professional ethics for Chinese certified public accountants, and we have fulfilled other
responsibilities in terms of professional ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
financial statements in 2020. The responses to these matters were based on the audit of the financial statements as
a whole and the formation of audit opinions. We do not provide a separate opinion on these matters and we confirm
that the following matters are the key matters to be communicated in the audit report.

(1) Impai men of comme €ial accep ance bills ©cei wble and. ‘ade ©cei wbles
i i i
I em desc ip ion
i {

As stated in Notes (VI). 40 to the financial statements, the sales revenue of Flat Group in 2020 was mainly from
the sales of PV glass amounting to RMBS5,225,674,398.32. The sales revenue of PV glass is recognized when
the customer obtains the control right of relevant goods. According to the agreement of the sales contract, for
domestic sales, Flat Group transported the goods to the agreed place of delivery or picked up by the buyers
on their own, with the revenue recognized on receiving the goods; and for export sales, Flat Group recognizes
the sales revenue according to the time when the control of goods is transferred-under-different trade-modes:
As revenue is one of the key performance indicators of Flat Group, and the timing of the transfer of control
of goods is different, there may be a risk that the sales revenue is not recognized in the appropriate period.
Therefore, we consider whether the sales revenue of PV glass is included in the appropriate accounting period
as the key audit matter.

FLAT GLASS GROUP CO., LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Hp aur "audi add €ssed he l§e axdi ma e "

{ { i i
Our main audit procedures for the key audit matters related to the cut-off of revenue recognition of the above
PV glass include:

(1) Obtain an understanding of the key internal control related to the cut-off of sales revenue recognition for
PV glass, evaluate the design and implementation of the relevant internal control, and test the effectiveness
of its operation;

(2) Check the sales contracts of major customers and interview with the management, identify the contract
terms related to the transfer time of control of goods and examine the book entry in accordance with the
terms of the contract, and verify whether the time point of revenue recognition of Flat Group is in line
with the provisions of accounting standards for business enterprises;

(3) Obtain the delivery records for a transaction cycle prior to the balance sheet date, For export sales, we
conducted sampling inspection of customs declarations or cargo receipt records for export sales according
to different trade patterns. For domestic sales, we sent the confirmations to the transport companies to
confirm the receipt status of goods or tested the receipt records of the good by sample; and

(4) Perform cut-off tests on the revenue of the last transaction cycle after the balance sheet date,and check
supporting documents related to revenue recognition including receipt records and customs declarations.
In addition, we also took into account whether there were major post-sales recalls and assessed their
impacts on the financial statements.

OTHER INFORMATION

The management of Flat Group is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our audit reports thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our

knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Flat Group is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a fair view in
accordance with the accounting standards for business enterprises, and designing, implementing and maintaining the
necessary internal controls so that the financial statements are free from material misstatement due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Flat Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
assumption unless the management either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Flat Group’s financial reporting process.
CPA’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance on whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement due to fraud or error, and to issue audit reports containing audit opinions. Reasonable assurance is a
high- level assurance, but it does not guarantee that the audit conducted in accordance with the auditing standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. At the same time, we also:

(1) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

(2) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances.

(3) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the management.

(4) Draw a conclusion on the appropriateness of management’s use of going concern assumption. At the same
time, conclude on whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Flat Group’s ability to continue as a going concern based on the audit evidence obtained. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required by the auditing standards to draw attention in
our audit report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such-disclosures-are-inadequate;
to issue a non-unqualified opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Flat Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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(5) Evaluate the overall presentation (including the disclosures), structure and content of the financial statements,
and whether the financial statements represent the relevant transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

(6) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Flat Group to express an audit opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide a statement to those charged with governance that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and communicate with those charged with governance all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be considered to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements in 2020 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.
Deloi e Taxche Tohma sa Chinese certified public accountant:
Certified Public Accountants LLP (engagement partner)

Shanghai, China
Chinese certified public accountant:

29 March 2021
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31 December 2020 | \

Iz ems

NOTE (6) 31 Decembe “2020

RMB

31 December 2019

G "én asse s:

Cashtat bank and on hand 1 1,589,967,013.69 613,000,364.84
Trading financial assets 2 400,000,000.00 =
Derivative financial assets 3 1,445,666.57 1,117,793.99
Bills receivable 4 546,772,640.17 1,976,383,235.76
Trade receivables 5 1,388,373,649.20 1,107,245,636.40
Financing receivables 6 684,530,748.37 o
Advance payment 7 363,154,384.40 93,183,465.96
Other receivables 8 24,267,677.88 3,684,181.68
Inventories 9 479,395,186.67 483,619,647.17
Other current assets 10 91,369,716.90 174,510,375.27

Toi al gx "én asse s 5,569,276,683.85  4,452,744,701.07

i i

Non-ex "én asse s:
Long—terrﬁ equi\ty investments 11 13,914,841.66 -
Other equity instrument investment 12 53,970,165.00 =
Investment properties 13 20,233,701.43 21,665,171.83
Fixed assets 14 3,333,698,217.15  3,070,665,219.42
Construction in progress 15 1,937,151,385.42 936,828,544.14
Right-of-use asset 16 173,805,026.26 188,930,554.53
Intangible assets 17 529,570,040.37 427,130,471.49
Long-term prepaid expenses 5,175,651.56 6,935,053.37
Deferred tax assets 18 25,990,515.11 18,458,589.23
Other non-current assets 19 603,014,147.21 268,922.264.83

Toi al non-ex "én assels 6,696,523,691.17  4,939,535,868.84

i

TQ al asse s 12,265,800,375.02 9,392,280,569.91

The notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 58 to 256 are signed by:

Legal Representative: Chief Financial Officer: Chief Accountant:
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Ix ems

NOTE (6) 31 Decembe 2020

RMB

31 December 2019

G "én liabili ies:
Short-term b%)rrowings
Derivative financial liabilities
Bills payables
Trade payables
Contract liabilities
Payroll payable
Tax payable
Other payables
Non-current liabilities due within one year
Toi al e P%ni liabilii ies
Non-ex "én liabili ies:
Long-ternll borrovlvings
Bonds payables
Lease liabilities
Deferred income
Deferred tax liabilities
To al non-ex "én liabili ies
TQL al liabili ies k
Shta €holde %’ eaui
Share capital
Other equity instruments
Capital reserve
Less: Treasury stock
Other comprehensive income
Special reserve
Surplus reserve
Undistributed profit
Total equity attributable to shareholders of
the parent company
Minority interests

To al sha €holde §’ ecx.liy

i
To al liabili ies and sha €holde §’ ecui‘,

20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

29
30
31
32
18

33
34
35
33
36
37
38
39

617,402,035.00

713,571,260.89
1,294,643,492.26
91,178,042.21
48,938,953.78
303,432,110.05
100,815,515.00
160,819,952.95

1,316,277,482.79
917,754.01
338,562,948.43
1,854,705,642.59
24,993,817.16
31,758,290.80
129,352,280.77
45,543,202.52
711,977,777.21

3,330,801,362.14

4,454,089,196.28

1,375,011,882.07
236,681,991.63
11,508,090.39
33,039,484.74
44,014,924.20

281,902,410.30
11,016,173.42
45,408,644.70
86,975,757.21

1,700,256,373.03

425,302,985.63

5,031,057,735.17

4,879,392,181.91

510,312,197.00
49,401,670.49
2,045,095,156.05

(28,359,000.00)
(26,338,876.15)

14,369,931.38
220,705,199.31
4,449,556,361.77

7,234,742,639.85

487,500,000.00

839,115,113.41
5,935,642.83
11,810,858.31
193,555,355.70
2,974,971,417.75

4,512,888,388.00

7,234,742,639.85

4,512,888,388.00

12,265,800,375.02

9,392,280,569.91

The notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
The financial statements on pages 58 to 256 are signed by:

Legal Representative:

Chief Financial Officer:

Chief Accountant:
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31 December 2020 L
RMB
Iz ems NOTE (14) 31 Decembe 2020 31 December 2019
Ga "én asse s:
Cashtat bank and on hand 1 299,567,786.91 223,564,789.23
Derivative financial assets 2 379,492.22
Bills receivable 3 488,505,596.47 1,567,902,478.98
Trade receivables 4 588,347,375.06 778,907,971.16
Financing receivables 5 633,026,500.88 -
Advance payment 6 39,787,487.32 45,197,178.86
Other receivables 7 682,247,356.05 356,091,353.75
Inventories 8 179,788,994.03 209,640,163.73
Other current assets 9 17,020.44 9,673,749.05
Toi al e "%ni asseis 2,911,288,117.16  3,191,357,176.98
Non-ex "én asse s:
Long-ternll equi\ty investments 10 1,046,552,184.66 1,043,137,343.00
Fixed assets 11 1,016,732,435.83 994,488,315.18
Construction in progress 12 293,288,787.44 163,647,371.24
Intangible assets 13 237,077,496.41 170,704,769.30
Long-term prepaid expenses 11,649.38 150,172.37
Deferred tax assets 14 22,181,477.91 6,379,124.69
Other non-current assets 15 2,161,507,235.87 567,405,500.94

To al non-ex "én asse s
i i i

4,777,351,267.50

2,945,912,596.72

7,688,639,384.66

6,137,269,773.70

Tq al asse s

The notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 58 to 256 are signed by:

Legal Representative:

Chief Financial Officer:

FLAT GLASS GROUP CO., LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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Ix ems

NOTE (14) 31 Decembe 2020

RMB

31 December 2019

G "én liabili ies:
Short-term b%)rrowings

Bills payables
Trade payables

Contract liabilities

Payroll payable
Tax payable
Other payables

To al ex "én liabili ies
i i i
Non-ea "én liabili ies:

i {.
Long-term borrowings

Bonds payables
Deferred income

To al non-ex "én liabili ies
i i i

To al liabili ies

{ {
Sha €holde $’ eaui :

Share capital

Other equity instruments

Capital reserve

Less: Treasury stock
Other comprehensive income

Surplus reserve

Undistributed profit
To al sha ¢holde ¥’ ecuil_
i
To al liabili ies and sha €holde %’ eﬂ,.ll,

16
17
18
19
20
21
22

23

24

25

26

140,391,130.00

604,274,221.67
58,126,632.90
25,684,776.32
64,209,186.23
1,647,392,704.28

736,237,118.11
190,000,000.00
1,483,614,555.57
17,454,654.26
18,089,920.60
53,925,402.29
338,332,869.33

2,540,078,651.40

2,837,654,520.16

235,000,000.00
236,681,991.63
23,487,048.57

34,543,339.29

495,169,040.20

34,543,339.29

3,035,247,691.60

2,872,197,859.45

510,312,197.00
49,401,670.49
2,045,095,156.05
(28,359,000.00)
(5,964,567.44)
220,705,199.31
1,862,201,037.65

487,500,000.00

839,115,113.41

193,555,355.70
1,744,901,445.14

4,653,391,693.06

3,265,071,914.25

7,688,639,384.66

6,137,269,773.70

17 17

The notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
The financial statements on pages 58 to 256 are signed by:

Legal Representative:

Chief Financial Officer:

Chief Accountant:
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Consolida ed Income S a emen

For the year ended 3“ December 2020 L L \,
RMB
Ama.ln ingx "édin  Amount incurred in
I: ems NOTE (6) he gt "én, ea " the previous year
I. Ope 4 ing © enae 40 6, 260 417, 792 26  4,806,804,020.96
Less: bperating costs 40 3,346,641,311.75 3,289,735,511.36
Taxes and surcharges 41 61,083,688.80 35,026,838.85
Selling expenses 42 301,854,852.77 255,112,912.72
General and administrative expenses 43 172,349,032.43 121,498,560.29
Research and development expenses 44 284,717,812.81 204,151,559.30
Financial expenses 45 141,528,692.18 53,129,460.34
Including: Interest expenses 80,273,151.69 65,388,264.94
Interest income 16,412,291.81 17,902,429.34
Add: Other income 46 25,471,233.82 30,189,426.63
Investment income 47 5,675,836.26 6,908,081.15
Profit (loss) arising from changes in fair value 2,614,841.66 =
Including: Gains on investment in associates 48 1,245,626.59 (5,234,350.32)
Credit impairment loss 49 (29,914,991.88) (12,816,559.04)
Asset impairment loss 50 (71,783,469.77) (14,697,934.51)
Losses on disposal of asset 51 (18,018,346.26) (6,541,402.98)
II. Ope 4 ing p ofi 1,864,918,290.28 845,956,439.03
Add: Non-operating income 52 12,889,216.85 16,897,963.68
Less: Non-operating expenses 53 3,899,465.44 184,158.59
IIL. To al p ofi 1,873,908,041.69 862,670,244.12
Leks: Incorhe tax expense 54 245,124,254.06 145,426,535.45
IV. Ne p ofi 1,628,783,787.63 717,243,708.67
Nét profit attributable to equity owners of parent company 1,628,783,787.63 717,243,708.67
Profit or loss attributable to minority interests -
V. O he "comp ¢hensi ¥ income, ne of a«¢ (32,274,518.98) 10,620,833.40
her comprehensive income, net b tax attrlbutable to the owner
of parent company (32,274,518.98) 10,620,833.40
(1) Other comprehensive income that cannot be reclassified to
profit ot loss (3,217,914.84) =
— Changes in fair value of other equity instruments (3,217,914.84) -
(2) Other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to
profit or loss (29,056,604.14) 10,620,833.40
— Exchange differences on foreign currency financial
statements translation (23,092,036.70) 10,620,833.40
— Changes in fair value of financing receivables (5,964,567.44) =
Other comprehensive income, net of tax attributable to
minority interests
VI. To al comp €hensi e income 1,596,509,268.65 727,864,542.07
Attributable to the shareholders of the parent company 1,596,509,268.65 727,864,542.07
Attributable to the minority interests =
VIL Ea ‘'hings pe "sha @
(1) Basic earnings per share 56 0.83 0.37
(2) Diluted earnings per share 56 0.81 0.37
The notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
The financial statements on pages 58 to 256 are signed by:
Legal Representative: Chief Financial Officer: Chief Accountant:
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Income S a emen of he Pa én Compan

\, \, \, For the year ehded 31 December3020
RMB
Ameun inea "ed in  Amount incurred in
IX ems NOTE (14) . hete..l "Vsn“, ea” the previous year
I. Ope 4ing ¢ enue 27 4,553,484,065.43 3,591,539,008.03
Less: bperatlng costs 27 3,720,981,669.51 3,000,997,457.74
Taxes and surcharges 28 22,889,998.05 15,520,516.48
Selling expenses 29 73,636,828.80 68,929,956.72
General and administrative expenses 30 109,487,312.67 76,656,007.96
Research and development expenses 31 145,433,731.51 100,075,014.72
Financial expenses 32 79,213,541.67 27,911,159.88
Including: Interest expenses 58,260,295.56 31,980,999.88
Interest income 5,119,750.54 12,524,684.44
Add: Other income 33 15,040,420.63 16,361,949.96
Investment (loss) income 34 (4,288,623.74) 471,707.68
Including: Gains on investment in associates 2,614,841.66 i
Loss from changes in fair value 35 (379,492.22) (3,852,732.49)
Credit impairment loss 36 (17,377,891.48) (15,465,340.85)
Asset impairment loss 37 (68,495,338.01) (14,697,934.51)
Losses on disposal of assets 38 (16,774,163.09) (7,017,163.75)
II. Ope 4 ing p ofi 309,565,895.31 277,249,380.57
Add: Non-opera\ting income 39 6,832,392.47 8,293,509.23
Add: Non-operating income 40 2,511,423.80 100,000.00
III. To al p ofi 313,886,863.98 285,442,889.80
Les: Incoe tax expenses 41 42,388,427.86 31,478,406.48
IV. Ne p bfl 271,498,436.12 253,964,483.32
V. O\he comp €hensi ¥ income, ne 0f ay (5,964,567.44) -
I.L O he "comp ‘¢hensi !mcome ha canng be classified in o
p bfl 0 "loss : -
II. O he ! comp €hensi ¥ income_hay, ill be classified in o
p ofi o ‘loss e ¢ (5,964,567.44) -
- Changes in fair value of receivables financing (5,964,567.44)
VI. Tg al comp €hensi ¥ income 265,533,868.68 253,964,483.32
The notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
The financial statements on pages 58 to 256 are signed by:
Legal Representative: Chief Financial Officer: Chief Accountant:
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Consolida ed S a emen of Cash Flg

For the year ended 3| Decembdr 2020 \
RMB
Ameauan inex "édin  Amount incurred in
I{ ems NOTE (6) . he'eu "&'enw ea” the previous year
I. Cashflp f 'om ope 4 ingaci vies:
Cash received from sale of gobds‘or rendering of services 4,260,896,686.12 4,515,888,387.61
Cash received from refunds of taxes 150,547,543.63 133,103,705.74
Cash received relating to other operating activities 57 (1) 42,603,582.52 89,326,909.64
Sub o al of cash inflp s 4,454,047,812.27 4,738,319,002.99
Cash baid for goods and services 1,667,088,694.33 3,368,644,502.93
Cash paid to and on behalf of employee 316,786,736.20 287,842,958.25
Cash paid for payments of taxes and surcharges 248,246,780.53 151,625,868.89
Cash paid relating to other operating activities 57 (2) 520,758,281.51 420,008,980.35
Sub o al of cash aux flg s 2,752,880,492.57 4,228,122,310.42
Ne ‘chsh flg f om‘ope % ing ac i v ies 1,701,167,319.70 510,196,692.57
II. Cdsh flp f omin s inglaq i ?\ies.}
Cash received from returns oh inVestments 25,655,598.20 8,272,192.47
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets 11,614,469.66 16,579,973.39
Cash received relating to other investing activities 57 (3) 125,909,899.04 131,264,078.45
Sab o al of cash inflp s 163,179,966.90 156,116,244.31
Cash baid to purchase fixed assets, intangible assets and
other long-term assets 1,950,128,106.90 1,301,734,508.16
Cash paid for investments 468,488,079.84 o
Cash paid relating to other investing activities 57 (4) 118,724,788.85 102,153,769.10
Sab o al of cash au flg s 2,537,340,975.59 1,403,888,277.26
Ne ‘chsh flg f om'in s ing ac i vies (2,374,161,008.69)  (1,247,772,032.95)
II1. Cdsh flo fom financiny aci *ie§:
Cash received from capital contribution 28,658,000.00 269,700,000.00
Cash received from bonds issuing 1,444,025,000.00 =
Cash received from borrowings 2,772,983,295.88 1,954,723,227.20
Cash received relating to other financing activities 57 (5) 255,660,791.32 277,454,484.32
Sab o al of cash inflp s 4,501,327,087.20 2,501,877,711.52
Cash baid for payment of borrowings 2,330,256,654.52 1,291,775,272.59
Cash paid for distribution of dividends, and profits or
payment of interest 244,567,836.56 229,761,226.52
Cash paid relating to other financing activities 57(6) 557,330,065.30 296,310,722.70
S.b o al of cash e flg s 3,132,154,556.38 1,817,847,221.81
Ne ‘cash flp f om'financing ac i v ies 1,369,172,530.82 684,030,489.71
Iv. EffeQ of fo ign e «change 2 e ‘cha\nges on cash and
cash eaui wlen s \ (29,075,003.29) 3,862,938.18
V. Ne dec ¢éase in cash and cash eaui wlen s 667,103,838.54 (49,681,912.49)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beﬁnning of the year 479,068,091.59 528,750,004.08
VI. Cash and cash eaui ulenX sa . he end of{ hQ, ea"” 1,146,171,930.13 479,068,091.59
The notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
The financial statements on pages 58 to 256 are signed by:
Legal Representative: Chief Financial Officer: Chief Accountant:
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Amauan inex "eéd in

RMB

Amount incurred in

I‘ ems NOTE (14) . he'eu "%nw ea"” the previous year
I. Cashflg f 'omope 2 ingaci Vies:
Cash received from sale of gobds‘or rendering of services 2,930,691,103.16  3,257,963,652.31
Cash received from refunds of taxes 19,189,989.89 41,213,278.68
Cash received relating to other operating activities 43 (1) 15,936,272.92 26,491,352.92
Sab o al of cash inflp s 2,965,817,365.97  3,325,668,283.91
Cash baid for goods and services 2,805,718,498.72  2,682,566,982.27
Cash paid to and on behalf of employee 156,730,320.57 146,295,174.43
Cash paid for payments of taxes and surcharges 92,327,401.58 46,139,814.03
Cash paid relating to other operating activities 43(2) 189,974,122.64 160,943,583.75
Sab o al of cash e flg s 3,244,750,343.51  3,035,945,554.48
Ne ‘cash flp f om'ope 4 ing ac i ¥ ies (278,932,977.54)  289,722,729.43
II. Cdshflg f om in esingac i vies!
Cash received from returns oh inVestments 1,759,200.00
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, intangible assets
and other long-term assets 11,397,687.32 3,093,989.93
Cash received relating to other investing activities 43(3) 258,179,396.36 246,772,690.36
Sab o al of cash inflp s 269,577,083.68 251,625,880.29
Cash baid to purchase fixed assets, intangible assets and other
long-term assets 287,276,684.06 184,514,117.79
Cash paid for investments 800,000.00 257,000,000.00
Cash paid relating to other investing activities 43(4) 2,126,958,214.27 338,217,053.07
Sab o al of cash au flg s 2,415,034,898.33 779,731,170.86
Ne ‘cash flp f om'in ‘es ing ac i ¥ ies (2,145,457,814.65) (528,105,290.57)
II1. Cdsh flo fom financin‘g ac i *iegz
Cash received from capital contribution 28,658,000.00 269,700,000.00
Cash received from bonds issuing 1,444,025,000.00 -
Cash received from borrowings 669,967,570.88 1,064,410,735.92
Cash received relating to other financing activities 43(5) 1,369,267,749.36 168,683,559.31
Sab o al of cash inflp s 3,511,918,320.24  1,502,794,295.23
Cash baid for payment of borrowings 764,468,760.28 656,619,995.68
Cash paid for distribution of dividends, and profits or
payment of interest 163,436,592.51 176,772,652.43
Cash paid relating to other financing activities 43(6) 126,294,817.74 444,513,969.81
Sab o al of cash g flg s 1,054,200,170.53 1,277,906,617.92
Ne ‘cash flp f om'financing ac i v ies 2,457,718,149.71 224,887,677.31
IV. Eﬁ’eq of fo ¢ign e «change 4 e thanges on cash and cash
eaui \alen s : (3,696,195.31) 623,827.56
V. Ne inc %5se/(dec €ase) in cash and cash eaui wlen s 29,631,162.21 (12,871,056.27)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 158,928,035.19 171,799,091.46
VI. Cash and cash eaui uleq sa . he end of: h%_ ea " 188,559,197.40 158,928,035.19
The notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
The financial statements on pages 58 to 256 are signed by:
Legal Representative: Chief Financial Officer: Chief Accountant:
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Consolida ed S a emen of Changes in Sha €holde ¥’ Eci,.liy

For the year ended 31 Deceli)bek 2020 i

RMB

1. Opening balance of he an ea 487,500,000.00
{

7,234,742,63¢85

4,449,556,461.77
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RMB

The last year
Equity attributable to the owners of the parent company
Other Total
comprehensive Undistributed shareholders’
Items Share capital ~ Capital reserve income  Special reserve  Surplus reserve profit  Minority interests equity
I Opening balance of the last year 450,000,00000  622.230,16241  (4,685,190.57)  9425,62741  168,158,907.37 2423524,15741 - 3,668,653,664.03
Il Increase/decrease for the current year
(I)  Total comprehensive income = - 10,620,833.40 = - 717,43,708.67 - 727.864,542.07
(IT) - Contribution of shareholders 37,500,000.00  216,884,951.00 3 & - - = 25438495100
1. Common shares contributed by
owners 37,500,000.00  216,884,951.00 3 - = - - 25438495100
(IIT) Profit distribution - & i - 2539644833 (165,7196,448.33) = (140,400,000.00)
1. Appropriation to sutplus reserve - = - - 2539644833 (25,396,448.33) - a
2. Appropriation to shareholders = = < = = (140,400,000.00) - (140,400,000.00)
(IV) Special reserve - - 2 2,385,230.90 - - - 2,385,230.90
1. Provision of special reserves - - r 2,385,230.90 - a - 2,385,230.90
IIL. Closing balance of the last year 487,500,00000 839, 115,11341 593564283 1181085831 19355535570 297497141775 - 4512,888,388.00
The notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
The financial statements on pages 58 to 256 are signed by:
Legal Representative: Chief Financial Officer: Chief Accountant:
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 FLAT GLASS GROUP CO., LTD.
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S a emen of Changes in Sha €holde §’ Eﬂ,.liY of hePa ¢én Compa§1
i i

F&r the year ended 31 December 2020

RMB
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RMB

The last year
Total
Undistributed shareholders’
Items Share capital Capital reserve Surplus reserve profit equity

. Opening balance of the last year
I. Increase/decrease for the current year
(I) Total comprehensive income
(I) Contribution and withdrawal of capital
by shareholders
1. Common shares contributed by
OWDErs
(IIT) Profit distribution
1. Appropriation to surplus reserve
2. Appropriation to shareholders
III. Closing balance of the last year

450,000,000.00

37,500,000.00

37,500,000.00

487,500,000.00

622,230,162.41

216,884,951.00

216,884,951.00

839,115,113.41

168,158,907.37

25,396,448.33
25,396,448.33

193,555,355.70

1,656,733,410.15

253,964,483.32

(163,796,448.33)

(25,396,448.33)
(140,400,000.00)
1,744,901,445.14

2,897,122,479.93
253,964,483.32
254,384,951.00

254,384,951.00
(140,400,000.00)

(140.,400,000.00)
3,265,071,914.25

The notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 58 to 256 are signed by:

Legal Representative:

Chief Financial Officer:
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No es_ o he Financial S a emen s
For thﬁ: yearbndel31December 2020 \, L L

@

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Compa§1 0e "

Flat Glass Group Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) was established on 24 June 1998 with its registered address at
1999 Yunhe Road, Xiuzhou District, Jiaxing, Zhejiang Province. On 29 December 2005, the Company was
converted into a joint stock limited liability company and changed its name to Zhejiang Flat Glass & Mirror
Co.,.ltd* (00 00ODO0OOOOOODODODODO).On23 March 2011, the Company was renamed as Flat Solar
Glass Group Co., Ltd.* (U OO OO0 OO0 OOOODO O O) and subsequently renamed as Flat Glass Group
Co,ltd* (0 0O0OO0OO0O0OOODONO) on 10 October 2014.

On 26 November 2015, the Company issued 450,000,000 overseas listed foreign shares (H shares) with a par
value of RMBO0.25 per share through global public offering. On the same date, the Company’s shares were
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

On 23 November 2018, the Company received the Approval of the Initial Public Offering of Shares of Flat
Glass Group Co., Ltd. (CSRC Approval [2018] No.1959) issued by China Securities Regulatory Commission,
that the Company can issue no more than 150,000,000 ordinary shares (A shares) and list on Shanghai Stock
Exchange. On 15 February 2019, the Company issued 150,000,000 RMB ordinary shares (A shares) with a
par value of RMBO0.25 per share at the issue price of RMB2.00 per share. After the change, the registered
capital was RMB487,500,000.00.

On 11 August 2020, in accordance with the “Proposal on Adjusting the List of Incentive Participants and the
Number of Restricted Shares Granted on the First Grant of the Company’s 2020 A-Share Restricted Share
Incentive Scheme” and the “Proposal on the First Grant of A-Share Restricted Shares to Incentive Participants”,
the Company granted restricted shares to proposed incentive participants. A total of 15 incentive participants
subscribed for 4,600,000 RMB ordinary shares (A Shares) with a par value of RMB0.25 each, and the grant
price was RMB6.23 per share. After the completion of the abovementioned transaction, the registered capital
of the company after the change was RMB488,650,000.00.

As approved by the China Securities Regulatory Commission, the Company publicly issued 14.50 million A
share convertible corporate bonds (the “Convertible Bonds™) with a par value of RMB100 each on 27 May
2020. The total amount of this issuance is RMB1,450,000,000.00 and the term is 6 years. Pursuant to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Stocks on Shanghai Stock Exchange and other relevant regulations and the Prospectus
of A Share Convertible Corporate Bond through Public Issuance of Flat Glass Group Co., Ltd., the Convertible
Bonds can be converted into the RMB ordinary shares (A Shares) of the Company from 3 December 2020.
The initial conversion price is RMB13.56 per share. The Company will adjust the conversion price based on
the prospectus upon the occurrence of distribution of stock dividend, capitalization issue, issuance of new
shares (excluding the increase in share capital due to the convertible corporate bonds in this issuance), rights
issue or distribution of cash dividend. On 9 November 2020, the Company adjusted the conversion price to
RMB13.48 per share based on the A-share restricted share incentive scheme and 2020 interim profit distribution
proposal. As at 31 December 2020, the Convertible Bonds totaling RMB1,168,082,000.00 have been converted
into the RMB ordinary shares (A Shares) of the Company. The cumulative number-of shares converted-was
86,648,788.00 shares, and the total amount of newly added share capital was RMB21,662,197.00. As at 31
December 2020, the abovementioned share conversion has completed the procedures for share transfer and
registration of China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited, and the relevant procedures
for change of registered capital have not been completed.
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@

(ID

CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)
1. Compagl O e "¢ (Continued)

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are the manufacturing and sales
of glass products.

The de facto controllers of the Company are Mr. Ruan Hongliang, Ms. Jiang Jinhua, Ms. Ruan Zeyun and Mr.
Zhao Xiaofei, of whom Mr. Ruan Hongliang and Ms. Jiang Jinhua are directors of the Company.

2. Scope of he Consolida ed Financial S a emen s
i i i i
On 29 March 2021, the Company’s company and consolidated financial statements have been approved by
the Board of Directors of the Company.

Details of the scope of consolidated financial statements are set out in Note (V) “Interests in other entities”
to the financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Basis of p €pa 4 ion
i

The Group has implemented the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and other relevant regulations
issued by the Ministry of Finance (hereinafter referred to as the “CASBE”) and has also disclosed relevant financial
information in accordance with the Preparation Convention of Information Disclosure by Companies Offering
Securities to the Public No.15 — General Provisions on Financial Reporting (revised in 2014). In addition, the
financial statements also include disclosures required by the Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules of the
stock exchange of Hong Kong.

Going conce

The Group has assessed the ability to continue as a going concern for a 12-month period since 31 December 2020
and is not aware of any events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the ability to continue as a going
concern. So the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Basis of accaan ing and p finciple of measa €men
i i

The Group has adopted accrual basis for accounting measurement. Except some financial instruments are measured
at fair value, the financial statements are based on historical cost. If the assets are impaired, corresponding provisions
for impairment shall be made according to relevant regulations.

Under the historical cost convention, assets are measured at the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the
fair value of the consideration given to acquire them at the time of acquisition. Liabilities are measured according
to the amount of payment or assets actually received due to the assumption of current obligations, or the contract
amount of the current obligation, or in accordance with the amount of cash or cash equivalents expected to be paid
in daily activities to meet liabilities.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 FLAT GLASS GROUP CO., LTD.
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(II) BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Basis of accaun ing and p finciple of measx €émen (Continued)
i i

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using valuation technique. Fair value measured and disclosed in the financial statements are determined
according to the above basis.

The fair value measurement is divided into three levels based on the observability of the inputs of the fair value
and the importance of the inputs to the fair value measurement as a whole:

. Level 1 inputs are the unadjusted quoted prices of the same assets or liabilities in the active market that can
be obtained on the measurement date.

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly.

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the relevant asset or liability.
(IIT) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacturing and sales of glass products. Therefore, the accounting
policies for recognition of revenue, impairment of financial instruments, depreciation of fixed assets and amortization
of intangible assets are based on the characteristics of the glass manufacturing industry. For details please refer to
Notes III, 25, II1, 9, III, 15 and III, 18.

1. S a emen of Compliancg, 1 h CASBE
i1 i
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the CASBE, and present
truly and completely the consolidated and the Company’s financial position as at 31 December 2020 and
the consolidated and the Company’s results of operations, the consolidated and the Company’s changes in
shareholders’ equity and the consolidated and the Company’s cash flows in 2020.

2. Accauxn ing Pe fiod
i
The accounting year of the Group is the calendar year, i.e. from 1 January to 31 December of each year.
3. Opea ingg_? cle
i

Operating cycle refers to the period from the purchase of assets used for processing to the realization of cash
or cash equivalents. The Group’s operating cycle usually takes approximately 12 months.

4. F.lnc,L ional Gu "'én)c
Renminbi (“RMB”) is the currency in the primary economic environment in which the Company and its
domestic subsidiaries, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries use RMB as their functional currency.
The Company’s domestic subsidiary determines VND as its functional currency based on the currency in
the primary economic environment in which it operates. The currency used by the Company in preparing the
financial statements is RMB.

FLAT GLASS GROUP CO., LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020



(IIT) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

5. Basiness Combina ions
i

Business combinations are classified into business combinations involving enterprises under common control
and business combinations not involving enterprises under common control.

5.1

5%

Business combina ions in wl vng en e p fisesminde "common con 6l

i { {
A business combination involving enterprises under common control is a business combination in which
all of the combining enterprises are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before and
after the combination, and that control is not transitory.

Assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured at their carrying amount of the
combined party at the combination date. The difference between the carrying amount of the net assets
acquired by the combining party and the carrying amount of the consideration paid for the combination
(or the aggregate face value of the shares issued) is adjusted to share premium under capital reserve, if
the share capital premium is insufficient to offset the difference, the retained earnings will be adjusted.

The costs that are directly attributable to the business combination are charged to profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Business combina ions no in wl vyng en e p fiseswinde "common con ol and goog ill
i i i i

A business combination not involving enterprises under common control is a business combination in
which all of the combining enterprises are not ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both
before and after the combination.

The cost of combination is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the acquisition date, of
assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the acquirer in exchange
for control of the acquiree. The intermediary fees incurred by the acquirer in respect of auditing, legal
services, valuation and consultancy services, etc. and other related administrative expenses attributable
to the business combination are charged to profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

The identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree that meet the recognition
conditions acquired by the acquirer in a business combination, are measured at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

Where the cost of combination exceeds the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets, the difference is recognised as an asset as goodwill and is initially measured at cost. Where
the cost of combination is less than the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets, the acquirer firstly reassesses the measurement of the fair values of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities and the measurement of the cost of combination. If after that
reassessment, the cost of combination is still less than the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets acquired in the combination, the difference is recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill occurred as a result of combination shall be recognised separately in the consolidated financial
statements and measured at cost less accumulated impairment provision.
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(IIT) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

P épa 4 ion of Consolida ed Financial S a emen s

i i ii i
The scope of consolidation for the consolidated financial statements is determined based on control. Control
refers to the power that the investor has over the investee; it means that the investor enjoys variable returns
by taking part in the relevant activities of the investee and is capable of using its power over the investee to
influence the amount of return. In case of changes in the relevant elements involved in the aforesaid definition
of control as a result of the changes in facts and circumstance, the Group will conduct re-assessment.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary.

For a subsidiary disposed of by the Group, the operating results and cash flows before the date of disposal
(the date when control is lost) are included in the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement
of cash flows, as appropriate.

For a subsidiary acquired through a business combination not involving enterprises under common control,
the operating results and cash flows from the acquisition date (the date when control is obtained) are included
in the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of cash flows, as appropriate.

No matter when the business combination occurs in the reporting period, subsidiaries acquired through a
business combination involving enterprises under common control or the party being absorbed under merger
by absorption are included in the Group’s scope of consolidation as if they had been included in the scope of
consolidation from the date when they first came under the common control of the ultimate controlling party.
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(IIT) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

P épa 4 ion of Consolida ed Financial S a emen s (Continued)
i i ii i

A transaction is accounted for as an equity transaction when the purchase of minority interest in a subsidiary
or the disposal of part of equity investment in a subsidiary does not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiary, and the carrying amount of equity attributable to the owner of the Company and minority
shareholders will be adjusted to reflect the changes of their related interests in the subsidiary. The difference
between the adjusted equity of minority shareholders and the fair value of the consideration paid/received is
adjusted to capital reserve. If the capital reserve is insufficient to offset the difference, the retained earnings
will be adjusted.

Recogni ion C i e ia of Cash and Cash Eaui wlen s

i i i
Cash comprises cash on hand and deposits that can be readily withdrawn on demand. Cash equivalents are
short-term, highly liquid investments held by the Group that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

T @nsla ion of Fo €ign Gu "én}c Basiness and Financial S a emen s Denomina ed in Fo €ign G "én}c
i il i i

8.1 Fo €éign e "@%_c Buasiness

Foreign currency transactions are translated at the spot exchange rate on the date of transaction at initial
recognition.

At the balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are translated into RMB using the spot
exchange rates at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising from the differences between
the spot exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date and those on initial recognition or at the
previous balance sheet date are recognised in profit or loss for the period, except that: (1) exchange
differences related to special borrowings denominated in foreign currency eligible for capitalization shall
be capitalized into the cost of the related assets during the capitalization period; (2) exchange differences
on hedging instruments for the purpose of hedging against foreign currency risk are accounted for using
hedge accounting; and (3) exchange differences arising from changes in carrying amount (other than
amortised cost) of monetary items at fair value through comprehensive income are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at historical cost are translated
to functional currency at the spot exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange
rate at the date the fair value is determined. The difference between the translated functional currency
amount and the original functional currency amount is treated as changes in fair value (including changes
in exchange rates) and is recognised in profit or loss or as other comprehensive income.
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(IIT) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8.

T ansla ion of Fo €ign Ga "%nyc Business and Financial S a emen s Denomina ed in Fo €ign Gu "én)c
(Contintied) A e E

82 T fms]:ig ion of fo €ign e "ét?)c financial f ELQ emetlz s
For the purpose of preparing the consolidated financial statements, the foreign currency financial
statements of overseas operations are translated into RMB financial statements using the following
method: all assets and liabilities in the balance sheet are translated at the spot exchange rate at the balance
sheet date; equity items converted at the spot exchange rate at the time of occurrence; all items in the
income statement and items reflecting the amount of profit distribution are translated at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions; the difference
between assets and the sum of liabilities and shareholders’ equity after translation is recognised in other
comprehensive income and included in shareholders’ equity.

Cash flows arising from a transaction in foreign currency and the cash flows of a foreign subsidiary are
translated at an exchange rate which approximates the spot exchange rate on the date of the cash flows.
The effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents is regarded as a reconciliation item
and presented separately in the statement of cash flows as “effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents”.

The opening balances and the actual figures of prior year are presented at the translated amounts in the
prior year’s financial statements.

Financial Ins imen s

i i
The Group recognises a financial asset or a financial liability when it becomes a party to a financial instrument
contract.

Where financial assets are purchased or sold in a regular way, assets to be received and liabilities to be borne
are recognised on the date of transaction, or assets sold are derecognised on the date of transaction.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. For financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, the related transaction costs are directly recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred. For other categories of financial assets and financial liabilities, the
related transaction costs are included in the initially recognised amount. When the Group initially recognizes
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or do not consider the financing component
in a contract not exceeding one year in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
No. 14 — Revenue (the “Revenue Standard”), the Group initially measures the receivables at the transaction
price as defined in the Revenue Standard.

Effective interest rate method is the method that is used in the calculation of the-amortised cost-of-a-financial
asset or a financial liability and in the allocation and recognition of the interest revenue or interest expense
in profit or loss over the relevant period.
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(IIT) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9.

Financial InsvL .-.‘.’lmen'l s (Continued)

The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash flows through the expected duration
of a financial asset or a financial liability to the carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost
of the financial liability. In determining the effective interest rate, the expected cash flow is estimated on the
basis of all contractual terms of the financial asset or financial liability (such as early repayment, extension,
call options or other similar options, etc.) without taking into account the expected credit loss.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability is the amount initially recognised for a financial
asset or a financial liability net of principal repaid, plus or less the cumulative amortised amount arising from
amortization of the difference between the amount initially recognised and the amount at the maturity date
using the effective interest method, net of cumulative loss allowance (only applicable to financial assets).

9.1 Classifica ion, €écogni ion and measa émen of financial asse s
i { i {
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s financial assets of various categories are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) or fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).

If the contractual terms of the financial asset stipulate that the cash flows generated on a specific date are
solely payments of the principal and the interest on the principal amount outstanding and the financial
asset is managed by the Group in a business model aimed at collecting contractual cash flows, the Group
shall classify the financial asset into the financial asset measured at amortised cost. Such financial assets
mainly include cash and bank balances, bills receivable and receivables, other receivables, etc.

If the contractual terms of the financial asset stipulate that the cash flows generated on a specific date are
solely payments of the principal and the interest on the principal amount outstanding and the financial
asset is managed by the Group in a business model aimed at both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling such financial assets, the Group shall classify the financial asset into the financial asset at FVTOCI.
These financial assets were classified as bills receivable at fair value through other comprehensive income
when obtaining, and presented under receivables financing.

On initial recognition, the Group may, based on an individual financial asset, irrevocably designate a
non-tradable equity instrument investment other than contingent consideration recognised in business
combination not involving enterprises under common control as financial asset at FVTOCI. Such financial
assets are presented as other equity instrument investments.

The Group’s purpose of holding the financial assets is for trading if one of the following conditions is
satisfied:

. The purpose of acquiring the financial assets is to sell the assets in the near future.
. The relevant financial assets are part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
centrally managed on initial recognition, and there is objective evidence of actually a recent short-

term profit-taking model.

U The relevant financial assets are derivatives, except for derivatives defined under financial guarantee
contracts and derivatives designated as effective hedging instruments.
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(IIT) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9.

Financial Ins {samen s (Continued)
() i
9.1 Classifica ion and measa émen of financial asse s (Continued)
i i {

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets classified as at FVTPL and financial assets designated
as at FVTPL.

Financial assets that do not meet the classification criteria for financial assets at amortised cost or
financial assets at FVTOCI are classified as financial assets at FVTPL.

On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset as at FEVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch or when the criteria for the hybrid
contract with embedded derivatives are met.

Except for derivative financial assets, financial assets at FVTPL are presented as held-for-trading
financial assets.

9.1.1 Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Financial asset at amortised cost is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Gains or losses arising from derecognition, impairment or amortization are
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group recognises interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The Group determines the interest income based on the carrying amount
of financial assets multiplied by the effective interest rate, except for:

. For purchased or originated credit impaired financial assets, the Group recognises their interest
income based on amortised cost and credit-adjusted effective interest rate of such financial
assets since initial recognition.

. For purchased or originated financial assets without credit impairment but with credit impairment
incurred in subsequent periods, the Group calculates and determines its interest income based
on amortised cost of the financial asset and the effective interest rate in subsequent periods.
If the credit risk of the financial instrument improves in subsequent periods and the financial
instrument is no longer credit impaired and the improvement can be linked to an event occurring
after the application of the above requirements, the Group will determine the interest income
based on the effective interest rate multiplied by the carrying amount of the financial assets.
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9.

Financial Ins ~Zimen s (Continued)
i i

9.1

9.2

Classifica ion and measa émen of financial asse s (Continued)
i { {
9.1.2 Financial assets classified as at FVTOCI

Except for impairment losses or gains related to financial assets at FVTOCI, interest income
calculated using the effective interest method and exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss, changes in fair value of the financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income.
The amount of the financial assets included in profit or loss for each period shall be equal to the
amount deemed as measured at amortised cost and included in profit or loss for each period. Upon
derecognition of the financial assets, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are transferred and reclassified into profit or loss for the period.

After the non-tradable equity instrument investment is designated as a financial asset at FVTOCI,
the changes in fair value of the financial asset are recognised in other comprehensive income.
When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are transferred from other comprehensive income and recognised in
retained earnings. During the period that the Group holds these non-tradable equity instrument,
the dividend income is recognised and included in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
dividends has been established and the economic benefits associated with the dividends are likely
to flow into the Group and the amount of the dividends can be reliably measured.

9.1.3 Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL shall be subsequently measured at fair value. Gains or losses from change
in fair value and dividends and interest income related to such financial assets shall be recognised
in profit or loss.

Impai men of financial ins -iimen s

{ i {
The Group performs impairment accounting for financial assets measured at amortised cost and financial
assets at FVTOCI based on expected credit losses (“ECL”) and recognises loss allowance.

The group measures the loss reserves of all commercial acceptance, bills receivable and trade receivable
formed due to the income standard in accordance with the amount equivalent to lifetime ECL.

For other financial instruments, except for purchased or originated credit impaired financial assets, at
each balance sheet date, the Group assesses changes in credit risk of relevant financial instruments since
initial recognition. If the credit risk on the financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures its loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime ECL of the financial
instrument. If the credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to next 12-month ECL of the
financial instrument. Except for financial assets measured at FVTOCI, the increased or reversed amount
of credit loss provision shall be included in profit and loss for the period as impairment loss or gain.
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9. Financial Ins
i

sumen s (Continued)
{

9.2 Impai fmen of financial ins samen s (Continued)
The Group measured loss allowance at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL of the financial instruments
in the previous accounting period. However, as at the balance sheet date for the current period, for the
above financial instruments, due to failure to qualify as significant increase in credit risk since initial

recognition, the Group measures loss allowance for the financial instrument at an amount equal to next
12-month ECL at the balance sheet date for the current period, and the relevant reversal amount of loss
allowance is included in profit or loss for the current period as an impairment gain.

9.2.1 Significant increase in credit risk

The Group uses reasonable and supportable forward-looking information that is available to
determine whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition by comparing the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the balance
sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the Group uses the date on
which it becomes the party making the irrevocable undertaking as the initial recognition date when

applying provisions for financial instrument impairment.

The Group will take the following factors into consideration when assessing whether the credit risk
has significantly increased:

(1)

)

3)

4)

(5)

FLAT GLASS GROUP CO.,

Whether the external market indicators of credit risk for the same financial instrument or similar
financial instruments with same expected life have changed significantly. These indicators
include: credit spread, credit default swap prices for borrowers.

Whether the debtor’s internal credit rating is actually lowered or is expected to be lowered.

Adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Whether the actual or expected operating results of the debtor has changed significantly.

Whether the regulatory, economic or technological environment in which the debtor is located
has undergone significant adverse changes.
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9.

Financial Ins ~Zimen s (Continued)
i i
9.2 Impai fmen of financial ins siamen s (Continued)
{ i i

9.2.1 Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of a significant increase in credit risk since above assessment, the credit risk of the
financial instrument is considered to have increased significantly when the contractual payments
are past due more than 30 days (inclusive).

As at the balance sheet date, if the Group judges that the financial instrument solely has lower credit
risk, the Group will assume that the credit risk of the financial instrument has not significantly
increased since initial recognition. If the default risk of a financial instrument is low, and the
borrower is highly capable of meeting its contract cash flow obligations in short term, the financial
instrument is considered to have a lower credit risk even if there is a negative change in the economic
situation and operating environment over a longer period of time, but it may not necessarily reduce
the borrower’s performance of its contract cash obligations.

9.2.2 Credit impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit impaired when one or more events that have an adverse impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit
impaired includes the following observable information:

(1) Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the debtor;

(2) The debtor breaches the contract, such as default or overdue on interest or principal payment;

(3) The creditor, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the financial difficulties of the
debtor, granted to the debtor a concession that the creditor would not otherwise consider;

(4) The debtor is likely to enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization;

(5) The active market for the financial asset disappeared due to the financial difficulties of the
issuer or the debtor.

Based on the Group’s internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event of default
occurs when information proposed internally or obtained externally indicates that the debtor of the
financial instrument is unable to pay its creditors (including the Group) in full (without taking into
account any guarantees obtained by the Group).

Irrespective of the above assessment, the Group presumes that default has occurred when the
contractual payments for a financial instrument are past due for more than 90 days (inclusive).
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9.

Financial Ins {samen s (Continued)
{) i
9.2 Impai fmen of financial ins samen s (Continued)
i { {

9.2.3 Determination of ECL

The Group uses impairment matrix to determine the credit loss of related financial instruments on the
basis of combination of bills receivable, financing receivables, trade receivable and other receivables.
The Group divides financial instruments into different groups based on common risk features. The
common credit risk features adopted by the Group include: type of financial instruments, credit
risk rating, initial recognition date, etc.

The Group determines ECL of relevant financial instruments according to the following methods:

J For financial assets, the credit loss shall be the present value of the difference between the
contractual cash flow to be received by the Group and the expected cash flow to be received.

U As for the financial assets with credit impairment occurred on the balance sheet date but
not purchased or generated, the credit loss is the difference between the book balance of
the financial assets and the present value of the estimated future cash flow discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

J For a financial guarantee contract, the credit loss is the estimated payment made by the Group
for the credit loss incurred by the contract holder, less the present value of the difference
between the amount expected to be collected by the Group from the contract holder, debtor
or any other party.

The factors reflected in the Group’s methods of measuring ECL of financial instruments include:
the unbiased probability weighted average amount determined by evaluating a series of possible
results; the time value of money; the reasonable and supportable information about past events,
current situation and future economic situation forecast that is available without undue costs or
efforts on the balance sheet date.

9.2.4 Write-down of financial assets

When the Group no longer reasonably expects that the contractual cash flow of the financial assets
can be recovered in whole or in part, the book balance of the financial assets shall be written down
directly. Such write down constitutes derecognition of related financial assets.
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9.3 T ansfe "of financial asse s
L

A financial asset is derecognised when one of the following conditions is met: (1) the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire; (2) the financial asset has been transferred and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset has been transferred to the
transferee; or (3) the financial asset has been transferred, although the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, it does not retain control over
the financial asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a financial
asset, it retains control of the financial asset, it recognises the financial asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement in the transferred financial asset and recognises the related liability accordingly. The Group
measures the related liabilities in the following ways:

U If the transferred financial asset is measured at amortised cost, the carrying amount of the related
liability is the carrying amount of the continuing involvement in the transferred financial asset less
the amortised cost of the rights retained by the Group (if the Group retains the rights due to the
transfer of the financial asset) plus the amortised cost of the obligations assumed by the Group (if
the Group assumes the obligations due to the transfer of the financial asset), and the related liability
is not designated as financial liability at FVTPL.

U If the transferred financial asset is measured at fair value, the carrying amount of the related liability
is the carrying amount of the continuing involvement in the transferred financial asset less the fair
value of the rights retained by the Group (if the Group retains the rights due to the transfer of the
financial asset) plus the fair value of the obligations assumed by the Group (if the Group assumes the
obligations due to the transfer of the financial asset), the fair value of the rights and the obligations
shall be the fair value at the time of measurement on an independent basis.

For a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety that satisfies the derecognition criteria, especially for a
financial asset classified at amortised cost and financial asset classified as at FVTOCI, the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset transferred and the sum of the consideration
received from the transfer and any cumulative gain or loss that has been previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss for the period. While regarding non-trading equity
instruments designated as at FVTOCI by the Group, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are transferred and included in retained earnings.
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9.

Financial Ins {samen s (Continued)
i {

9.3

9.4

T ‘ansfe "of financial asse s (Continued)
{

If part of the transferred financial asset satisfies the derecognition criteria, the carrying amount of the
financial asset as a whole is allocated between the part that is derecognised and the part that continues to
be recognised, based on the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference
between the carrying amount allocated to the part derecognised and the sum of the consideration received
for the part derecognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to the part derecognised that has been
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss or retained earnings.

For a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety that does not satisfy the derecognition criteria, the Group
will continuously recognise the transferred financial asset in its entirety. Considerations received due to
transfer of assets should be recognised as a liability upon receipts.

Classifica ion and measa émen of financial liabili ies and ea.n;' ins siumen s
{ { L i {

Based on the contractual terms of the financial instruments issued and the economic substance rather

than only the form of legal contracts reflected, along with the definition of financial liabilities and equity

instruments, the Group classifies the financial instruments or its components as financial liability or

equity instrument at initial recognition.

9.4.1 Classification, recognition and measurement of financial liabilities

Upon initial recognition, financial liabilities are classified into financial liabilities at FVTPL and
other financial liabilities.

94.1.1 Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss include held-for-trading financial
liabilities (including derivatives that are financial liabilities) and financial liabilities designated
as at FVTPL. In addition to the derivative financial liabilities listed separately, financial
liabilities at FVTPL are listed as transactional financial liabilities.

The Group’s purpose of undertaking the financial liabilities is for trading if one of the following
conditions is satisfied:

. The purpose of undertaking relevant financial liabilities is mainly for the recent repurchase.
. The relevant financial liabilities are part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are centrally managed on initial recognition, and there is-objective-evidence of

actually a recent short-term profit-taking model.

. The relevant financial liabilities are derivatives, except for derivatives defined under
financial guarantee contracts and derivatives designated as effective hedging instruments.
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Financial Ins samen s (Continued)

1% L

9.4 Classifica ion and meas.ax émen of financial liabili ies and ea.n;‘v ins simen s (Continued)
{

[ i [ i

9.4.1 Classification, recognition and measurement of financial liabilities (Continued)

9.4.1.2 Other financial liabilities (Continued)
94121 Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder of the contract for a loss it incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms
of a debt instrument. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial guarantee contracts
that are not designated as financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at the higher
of the amount of loss provision and the amount initially recognized less cumulative
amortization amount determined in accordance with the relevant regulations set out in
Revenue Standard.

9.4.2 Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability (or part of it) only when the underlying present obligation
(or part of it) is discharged. Where an agreement between the Group as borrower and lender is signed
to replace the original financial liability and the contractual terms of the new financial liability
and the original financial liability are substantially different, the Group derecognised the original
financial liability and recognised the new financial liability.

On derecognition of a financial liability in its entirety or partially, the difference between the
carrying amount of the part derecognised and the consideration paid (including any non-cash asset
transferred or new financial liability assumed) is recognised in profit or loss for the period.

9.4.3 Equity instruments

Equity instruments are any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued (including refinancing), repurchased,
sold or cancelled by the Group are treated as changes in equity. Changes in fair value of equity
instruments is not recognised by the Group. Transaction costs related to equity transactions are
deducted from equity.

The Group recognises the distribution to holders of the equity instruments as profit distribution,
dividends paid do not affect total amount of shareholders’ equity.
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9.6
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De i w i e ins siumen s and embedding de 7 v i es
i i

Derivative instruments including forward foreign exchange contracts, currency swap contracts and

interest rate swap contracts, etc. Derivatives are initially measured at fair value on the signing dates of the

relevant contracts and subsequently measured at fair value. The changes in fair value of the derivatives

are recognised in profit or loss for the period.

For the hybrid contract comprised of embedded derivatives and master contract, if the master contract
belongs to financial assets, the Group shall apply the hybrid contract as a whole to the accounting standards
on the classification of financial assets rather than split embedded derivatives from the hybrid contract.

The Group will split the embed derivatives from the hybrid contract to treat as a stand-alone derivative
instrument if the master contract included in the hybrid contract does not belong to financial assets, and
the following conditions are met:

(1) The economic characteristics of the embedded derivatives are not closely related to the economic
characteristics and risk of the master contract.

(2) The stand-alone instrument which has the same terms of embedded derivatives conforms to the
definition of derivative instruments.

(3) The hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss for the period.

Where an embedded derivative is split from a hybrid contract, the Group performs accounting treatment
for the master contract of the hybrid contract in accordance with applicable accounting standards. Where
the Group is unable to measure the fair value of an embedded derivative reliably in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the embedded derivative, the fair value of such embedded derivative is determined
as the difference between the fair value of the hybrid contract and that of the master contract. Where
the fair value of such embedded derivative on the acquisition date or the subsequent balance sheet dates
is still unable to be measured separately, the Group designates the hybrid contract in a whole into the
financial instrument at fair value through profit or loss for the period.

Offs‘fi ing financial asstlg s and financial Iiabillj ies
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in balance sheet
when the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised financial assets and financial
liabilities, and the Group intends to settle with net amount, or realise the financial asset and settle the
financial liability simultaneously. Otherwise, the financial assets and financial liabilities will be presented
separately in balance sheet and will not be mutually set off.
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(IIT) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)
9. Financial Ins ~iumen s (Continued)
i i

9.7 Con e "ible bonds
{

The convertible bonds issued by the Group which contain liabilities and conversion options, shall be
split upon initial recognition and recognised separately. Of which, conversion options for settlement of
fixed amount of cash or other financial assets in exchange for fixed amount of self-equity instruments
is accounted for as equity instruments.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability portion is determined at current market prices similar
to those of bonds without conversion options. The difference between the overall issue price of convertible
bonds and the fair value of the liability portion shall be taken as the value of the conversion options of
the bondholders to convert the bonds into equity instruments and recorded in other equity instruments.

In the subsequent measurement, the liability portion of convertible bonds are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method. The value of the conversion option divided into equity instruments
continues to be retained in the equity instruments. No loss or gain is incurred when a convertible bond
expires or is converted.

The transaction costs incurred in issuing convertible bonds shall be apportioned between the liability
component and the equity component according to their respective fair value. Transaction costs related
to the equity component are directly recorded in the equity instruments; transaction costs related to the
liability component are recorded in the carrying amount of the liability and amortized over the term of
the convertible bonds using the effective interest rate method.

10. Financing ®cei wbles

For notes receivable classified as at FVTOCI, the portion within one year (inclusive) from the date of acquisition
is presented as financing receivables. For details of the relevant accounting policies, please refer to Note (IIT)

OOV and 9.3
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(ITII) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

11.

In en o fies

L

11.1 Classifica ion of in en o fes
i i

The Group’s inventories mainly include raw materials, low-value consumables, works in progress and
finished goods, etc. Inventories are initially measured at cost, which comprises purchase costs, processing
costs and other expenses incurred in bringing the inventories to their current location and condition.

11.2 P ficing of in en o fes deli ¥ éd
{

The actual cost of inventories upon delivery is calculated using the weighted average method.

11.3 De e fmina ion of ne €alisable wlie of in en o fes
{ l

i L

At the balance sheet date, inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. If the
net realisable value is below the cost of inventories, a provision for impairment of inventories is made.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price of inventories in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs to completion, estimated selling expenses and related taxes. Net realisable value of
inventories is determined on the basis of clear evidence obtained, taking into account the purpose of
holding inventories and the effect of events after the balance sheet date.

Provision for impairment of inventories is made based on the excess of cost over net realisable value of
individual inventory item.

After the provision for impairment of inventories is made, if the circumstances that previously caused
inventories to be written-off no longer exist so that the net realisable value of inventories is higher than
their carrying amount, the original provision for impairment of inventories is reversed and the reversed
amount is recognised in profit or loss for the period.

11.4 In en o.” s s em
16 2

i i

The inventory system is a perpetual inventory system.

11.5 Amo "iza ion of lg - wlie consamables
{

i

Low-value consumables are amortised using one-off write-off method.
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(IIT) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

12.

13.

Asse s Held fo "Sale
i

A non-current asset or disposal group is classified as asset held for sale when the carrying amount of the
asset is recovered principally through a sale transaction (including an exchange of non-monetary assets with
commercial substance) rather than through continuing use.

Non-current assets or disposal groups held for sale are required to satisfy the following conditions: (1) an
immediate sale can be made under the current conditions according to the practice of selling such assets or
disposal groups in similar transactions; and (2) it is highly probable that a sale will occur, that is, the Group
has made a resolution on a sale plan and obtained a definite purchase commitment, and the sale is expected
to be completed within one year.

The Group measures non-current assets or disposal groups held for sale at the lower of carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell. If the carrying amount is higher than the net amount of the fair value less costs
to sell, the carrying amount shall be written-off to the fair value less costs to sell, the amount written-off is
recognised as an impairment loss of assets and included in profit or loss for the period, and the provision for
impairment of assets held for sale is made simultaneously. Where there is an increase in the net amount of
fair value less costs to sell of non-current assets held for sale at the subsequent balance sheet date, the amount
previously written-off should be recovered and reversed in the amount of impairment loss recognised for the
assets after being classified as held for sale, and the reversed amount is included in profit or loss for the period.

Depreciation or amortization shall not be made for non-current assets in the non-current assets or disposal
groups held for sale. The interest of liabilities and other expenses in the disposal groups held for sale shall
be continuously recognised.

The equity investments in associates are classified in whole or in part as assets held for sale. The part of such
equity investments in associates classified as held for sale will cease to calculate using equity method from
the date of being classified as held for sale.

Long- e"m Egui In s men s
i ) i i
13.1 Basis of de e 'mina ion of join con 0l and significan inflaence
{ i { { {

Control refers to the power of investor over the investee, who enjoys variable returns by participating in
the relevant activities of the investee, and has the ability to use the power over the investee to influence
the amount of returns. Joint control refers to the joint control over an arrangement according to relevant
agreements, and the related activities of the arrangement can only be decided after the consensus of
the parties sharing the control. Significant influence refers to the power to participate in the decision-
making of the financial and operational policies of the investee, but cannot control or jointly control the
formulation of these policies with other parties. In determining whether it is possible to exercise control
over or exert significant influence over the invested entities, it has taken into account the potential voting
right factors such as the current convertible bonds and the current executable warrants of the invested
entities held by the investor and other parties.
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(IIT) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)
13. Long- e Eﬂ,.lii In ¥s men s (Continued)
i i i

13.2 De e fmina ion of inj ial in s men cos
i i { i i

For a long-term equity investment acquired through a business combination involving enterprises under
common control, the initial investment cost is the attributable share of the carrying amount of the owners’
equity of the acquiree in the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate controlling party at the
date of combination. The difference between the initial investment cost of a long-term equity investment
and the carrying amount of cash paid, non-cash assets transferred and liabilities assumed is adjusted to
capital reserve. If the capital reserve is insufficient to offset the difference, the retained earnings shall
be adjusted. Where the consideration of the combination is satisfied by the issue of equity securities, the
initial investment cost is the attributable share of the carrying amount of the owners’ equity of the acquiree
in the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate controlling party at the date of combination, and
the total nominal value of the shares issued is recognised as share capital. The difference between the
initial investment cost of a long-term equity investment and the total nominal value of the shares issued
is adjusted to capital reserve. If the capital reserve is insufficient to offset the difference, the retained

earnings shall be adjusted.

For a long-term equity investment acquired through a business combination not involving enterprises
under common control, the initial investment cost is the combination cost at the date of acquisition.

The intermediary expenses incurred by the acquirer or purchaser in respect of auditing, legal services,
valuation and consultancy services, etc. and other related administrative expenses attributable to the

business combination are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

The long-term equity investment acquired other than through a business combination is initially measured

at its cost.
13.3 Subseauen measa émen and €écogni ion of p 0fi o "loss
{ { { {

133.1 Long-term equity investments accounted for using the cost method

Long-term equity investments in subsidiaries are accounted for using the cost method in the financial
statements of the Company. A subsidiary is an investee that is controlled by the Group.

Long-term equity investments accounted for using the cost method are measured at initial investment
cost. When additional investment is made or the investment is recouped, the cost of the long-
term equity investment is adjusted accordingly. The current investment income is recognised in

accordance with the cash dividends or profit distributions declared by the investee.
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(IIT) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

13. Long- e in Ee..u1 In es men s (Continued)
i i i

13.3 Subseaquen measa émen and €écogni ion of p 6fi o "loss (Continued)
{ { { {

1332 Long-term equity investment accounted for by equity method

The Group’s investment in associates is accounted for by equity method. Associates refer to invested
entities to which the Group can exert a significant influence.

When adopting equity method accounting, if the initial investment cost of long-term equity investment
exceeds the share of the fair value of identifiable net assets of the invested entity at the investment
date, no adjustment shall be made to the initial investment cost of long-term equity investment.
If the initial investment cost is less than the share of the fair value of identifiable net assets of the
invested entity at the investment date, the difference shall be charged to current profit or loss, and
the long-term equity investment cost shall be adjusted at the same time.

When adopting equity method accounting, the investment income and other comprehensive income
shall be recognised separately according to the share of net profit or loss and other comprehensive
income realised by the invested entity, and the carrying amount of long-term equity investment
shall be adjusted at the same time; the carrying amount of long-term equity investment shall
be reduced accordingly by calculating the portion to be enjoyed according to the profit or cash
dividend declared by the invested entity; the carrying amount of long-term equity investment shall
be adjusted and included in the capital reserve for other changes in the owner’s rights and interests
of the invested entity except net profit or loss, other comprehensive income and profit distribution.
When recognising the share of the net profit or loss of the invested entity, the net profit of the
invested entity shall be adjusted and recognised on the basis of the fair value of the identifiable
assets of the invested entity at the acquisition date. If the accounting policies and periods adopted
by the invested entity are inconsistent with those of the Company, the financial statements of
the invested entity shall be adjusted in accordance with the accounting policies and period of the
Company. The investment income and other comprehensive income shall be recognised accordingly.
For transactions between the Group and associates, the assets invested or sold do not constitute
business, and the unrealised gains and losses of internal transactions are offset by the shareholding
attributable to the Group. On this basis, the investment gains and losses are recognised. However,
the unrealised internal transaction losses between the Group and the invested entity shall not be
offset if they belong to the impairment losses of the transferred assets.

The Group discontinues recognising its share of net losses of the invested entity after the carrying
amount of the long-term equity investment together with any long-term interests that in substance
form part of its net investment in the invested entity is reduced to zero. In addition, if the Group
has incurred obligations to assume additional losses of the invested entity, estimated liability is
recognised according to the expected obligation, and recorded as investment loss for the period.
Where net profits are subsequently made by the invested entity, the Group resumes recognising its
share of those profits only after its share of the profits exceeds the share of losses previously not
recognised.

13.4 Disposal of long- e ea.n;’ in s men s
i { i

On disposal of a long-term equity investment, the difference between the carrying amount and the actual
purchase price is recognised in profit or loss for the period.
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(IIT) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

14.

15.

In es men P bpe "ies
i i i

Investment properties are properties held for the purpose of earning rentals or capital appreciation, or both.
Investment properties include leased land use rights, land use rights held and prepared for transfer after
appreciation, buildings leased out, etc.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost. Subsequent expenditures related to an investment property
shall be included in cost of investment property only when the economic benefits associated with the asset
will likely flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. All other subsequent expenditures on an
investment property shall be included in profit or loss for the current year when incurred.

The Group adopts the cost model for subsequent measurement of investment properties, and investment
properties are depreciated or amortised based on the same policy consistent with houses and buildings or
land use rights.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals.

When an investment property is sold, transferred, retired or damaged, the amount of any proceeds on disposal
of the property net of the carrying amount and related taxes is recognised in profit or loss for the period.

Fi «d Asse s
i

15.1 Condi ions of €écogni ion
{ {
Fixed assets are tangible assets that are held for use in the production of goods or supply of services, for
rental to others, or for administrative purposes and have a useful life of more than one accounting year. A
fixed asset is recognised only when the economic benefits associated with the asset are probable to flow
to the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Fixed assets are initially measured at cost.

Subsequent expenditures incurred for a fixed asset are included in the cost of the fixed asset if it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can
be measured reliably, and the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. Other subsequent
expenditures other than the above are charged to profit or loss for the current period when incurred.
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17.

18.

Bo "% ing Cos s
i

The borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised when expenditures for the asset are being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities relating to the acquisition, construction or production of the asset that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale have commenced. The capitalisation of qualifying assets under construction
or production ceases when the assets are ready for their intended use or sale. The remaining borrowing costs
are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

Where funds are borrowed under a special borrowing, the amount to be capitalised is the actual interest expense
incurred on that borrowing for the period less any interest income earned from depositing the unused borrowing
funds into bank or any investment income on the temporary investment of those funds. Where funds are
borrowed under a general borrowing, the amount capitalised is determined by applying the weighted average
of the excess amounts of cumulative expenditures on the asset over the special borrowings multiplied by the
capitalization rate of the general borrowings used. The capitalization rate is determined based on the weighted
average interest rate of the general borrowings. During the capitalisation period, the exchange differences on
special foreign currency borrowings are all capitalised; the exchange differences on general-purpose foreign
currency borrowings are recognised in profit or loss for the period.

In angible Asse s
i i
18.1 In angible asse s
i i

Intangible assets include software, pollutant discharge rights, mining rights and land use rights, etc.
The intangible assets shall be initially measured at cost. When an intangible asset with a finite useful life
is available for use, its original cost less net residual value and any accumulated impairment losses is
amortised over its estimated useful life using the straight-line method. Intangible assets are not amortised

while their useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. The amortization method, useful life and estimated
net residual value rate of each class of intangible assets are as follows:

Use£al life Residual
Class Amo X"iza% ion me hod (Yea §) Value Rg e (%)
Land use rights Straight line method 42-50 years -
Pollutant discharge rights Straight line method 5-20 years -
Mining rights Output method - -
Software Straight line method 5-10 years -

At the end of the year, the useful life and amortization method of intangible assets with finite useful lives
are reviewed and adjusted if necessary.

For the impairment test of intangible assets, please refer to Note (III).19. “Impairment of Long-term
Assets”.
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(IIT) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

18. In angible Asse s (Continued)
i i

18.2 In e hal ésea ¢h and de ¥lopmen e pendimt és
{ { i

Expenditures incurred in the research stage are recognised in profit or loss for the period.

Expenditures incurred in the development stage are recognised as intangible assets only when all of the
following conditions are satisfied, and the expenditures in the development stage that does not meet all
of the following conditions are recognized in profit or loss for the period:

(1)

@)

3)

(4)

(%)

The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or
sale;

The intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
The way in which the intangible asset generates economic benefits, including the ability to prove
that there is a market for the product produced using the intangible asset or the intangible asset

itself has a market, and prove its usefulness if the intangible asset will be used internally;

Adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development of the intangible
asset and to use or sell the intangible asset;

The ability to measure reliably the expenditures attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

If the expenditures cannot be distinguished between the research stage and development stage, the Group
recognises all of them in profit or loss for the period. The cost of the intangible asset formed by internal
development activities only includes the total expenditure incurred from the time when the capitalization
conditions are met to the time when the intangible asset reaches the intended purpose. The expenditures
that have been expensed into profit and loss before the capitalization conditions are met for the same
intangible asset in the development process will not be adjusted.
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(IIT) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

19.

20.

21.

22.

Impai ‘imen of Long- e m Asse s
i i i

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that long-term equity investments,
investment properties, fixed assets, construction in progress measured using the cost method and intangible
assets with finite useful lives may be impaired. If an impairment indication exists, the recoverable amount
is estimated. Intangible assets with indefinite useful life and intangible assets not yet available for use are
tested for impairment annually, irrespective of whether there is any indication that the assets may be impaired.

If the estimated recoverable amount of an asset is based on a single asset and it is difficult to estimate the
recoverable amount of a single asset, the recoverable amount of the asset group shall be determined on the
basis of the asset group to which the asset belongs. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or asset
Group’s fair value less costs of disposal and the present value of the estimated future cash flows.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, a provision for impairment of the asset
is made based on the difference and recognised in profit or loss for the period.

An impairment loss once recognised shall not be reversed in a subsequent accounting period.
Long- e in Defe "&d E penses
i

Long-term deferred expenses are expenses which have incurred but shall be amortised over the current period
and subsequent periods of more than one year. Long-term deferred expenses are amortised evenly over the
estimated benefit period.

Con %4c Liabili ies

(Y i
A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. Contract assets
and contract liabilities under common contract are presented on a net basis.

Empl}o ee Compensa ion
i
22.1 Accaun ing fo "sho "- e empgo ee compensa ion
i Li {

In the accounting period in which an employee has rendered services, the Group recognises the short-
term employee compensation actually incurred as liabilities, and includes in profit or loss for the period
or related asset costs. The employee benefits expenses incurred by the Group are recognised in profit or
loss for the period or related asset costs based on the actual amount when actually incurred. The non-
monetary employee benefits expenses are measured at fair value.

In determining the corresponding amount of employee compensation, social security contributions such
as medical insurance, work injury insurance and maternity insurance and housing funds, as well as
labour union running expenses and employee education expenses provided by the Group are calculated
according to the prescribed provision bases and percentages during the accounting period in which the
employees provide services to the Group, and the corresponding liabilities are recognised, and included
in profit or loss for the period or related asset costs.
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(IIT) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

22.

23.

24.

Empl)o ee Compensa ion (Continued)
i

22.2 Accaun ing fo "pos -emp{‘o men benefi s
i i i {

Post-employment benefits are all defined contribution plans.

In the accounting period in which an employee has rendered service, the Group recognises the amount
payable under the defined contribution plan as a liability, and includes in profit or loss for the period or
related asset costs.

22.3 Acca.nlg ing fo i e im'mlg ion benet;i s
When the Group provides termination benefits to employees, employee compensation liabilities arising
from termination benefits are recognised in profit or loss at the earlier of the following dates: when the
Group cannot unilaterally withdraw the termination benefits provided because of an employee termination
plan or a layoff proposal, or when the Group confirms the costs or expenses related to the restructuring
involving the payment of dismiss benefits.

P © wsions

Obligations related to product quality guarantee contingencies are recognised as provisions when the Group
has a current obligation, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

On the balance sheet date, provision shall be measured at the best estimate of the expenditure for settling the
current obligation, taking into account the risk and uncertainty and time value of money and other factors
related to the contingencies. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the best estimate of the
expenditure is determined by discounting the expected future cash outflows.

Sha é-based P)a men s
i

The Group’s share-based payments are transactions in which equity instruments are granted to employees in

exchange for services rendered by employees or for the assumption of liabilities based on equity instruments.

The Group’s share-based payments are equity-settled share-based payments.
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(IIT) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)
24. Sha ‘e-based P)a men s (Continued)
i

24.1 Eguaj se, led sha é-based p)a men s
At {

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees in exchange for services rendered by employees are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted to employees at the grant date.

At each balance sheet date during the pending period, the Group, based on the latest subsequent information
such as the latest update on the change in the number of entitled employees, makes best estimates to
adjust the expected number of equity instruments that can be vested. The effect of the above estimate
is included in relevant costs or expenses for the period and the capital reserve is adjusted accordingly.

24.2 Accaun ing €a men in €la ion_ o implemen a ion, modifica ion and_e fmina ion of sha é-based

Lo ofan & i i i L1 i l i
pp men plan
i

When the Group modifies the share-based payment plan, and if such modification increases the fair
value of the equity instruments granted, the increase in services received will be recognised accordingly
following the increase in fair value of the equity instruments. If the modification increases the number
of the equity instruments granted, the increase in fair value of the equity instruments will be recognised
accordingly as the increase in services received. The increase in fair value of the equity instruments refers
to the difference in fair value on the date of modification before and after the modification in respect of
the equity instruments. If the modification reduces the total fair value of the share-based payments or
adopts any form that is unfavorable to employees to modify the terms and conditions of the share-based
payment plan, accounting treatment will be continued to be conducted in respect of the services received
and the modification will be deemed to have never occurred, unless the Group had cancelled part or all
of the equity instruments granted.

During the pending period, if the equity instruments granted are cancelled, the Group will undertake
an accelerated vesting in respect of the cancelled equity instruments that had been granted, include the
remaining amount that shall be recognised during the pending period in the profit and loss for the period
immediately and recognise capital reserve accordingly. Where employees or other parties are permitted
to choose to fulfill non-vesting conditions but have not fulfilled during the pending period, the Group
will treat the granted equity instruments as cancelled.
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(IIT) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

25.

26.

Re enue

The Group’s revenue is mainly derived from the sales of glass products, which mainly include photovoltaic
glass, household glass, architectural glass, float glass and mining products, etc. Revenue from other business
mainly represents rental income from properties and sales income of materials.

The Group recognises revenue based on the transaction price allocated to such performance obligation when
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer. A performance obligation represents the commitment
that a good and service that is distinct shall be transferred by the Group to the customer. The transaction price
is the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised
goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties and amounts expected
to be refunded to a customer.

For the performance obligations to be performed during a certain period of time, the Group recognises revenue
over time by reference to the progress of a performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met: (1)
the customer receives and consumes the economic benefits brought by the Group while performing obligations;
(2) the customer can control the goods under construction during the performance of the Group; (3) the goods
produced during the performance of the Group have irreplaceable uses, and the Group has the right to receive
payment for the part of the completed performance so far throughout the contract period. Otherwise, the Group
will recognise revenue at the time point when the customer obtains control over relevant goods or services.

Go ¥ hmen G an s
i i

Government grants are transfer of monetary assets and non-monetary assets from the government to the Group
at no consideration. A government grant is recognised only when the Group can comply with the conditions
attaching to the grant and the Group will receive the grant.

If a government grant is in the form of monetary asset, it shall be measured at the amount received or receivable.

26.1 Jrdgemen basis and accaan ing. €a men of go ¥ hmen g 4n s €la ed o asse s
{ (i O Y { { { i i {

For details, please see Note (VI)32 for the Group’s government grants related to assets. Such grants are

government grants as they related to fixed assets that were built or acquired.

A government grant related to assets is recognised as deferred income and included in current profit or
loss over the useful life of the related asset using the straight-line method.
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26.

27.

Go ¢ imen G ‘an s (Continued)
i i
26.2 Jadgemen basis and accaan ing €a men of go ¥ nmen g 4n s €la ed o € enue
{ IO i i i [ i

Please refer to Note (VI) 61 for details of the grants related to revenue of the Group. As they are directly
related to the expenses incurred during the period, such government grants are government grants related
to revenue.

A government grant related to revenue used to compensate for relevant costs, expenses and losses in
subsequent periods is recognised as deferred income, and is included in profit or loss for the period
directly over the periods in which the relevant costs, expenses or losses are recognised. The government
grants related to revenue used to compensate for relevant costs, expenses and losses already incurred is
included in profit or loss for the period directly.

The government grants related to the Group’s daily activities are included in other income/offset the
relevant costs and expenses according to the nature of economic business. Otherwise, government grants
are included in non-operating income or expense.

SafeI P oduc ion E gpenses
i

Pursuant to the requirements of the Administrative Measures for the Withdrawal and Use of Safety Production
Expenses of Enterprises issued by the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Work Safety, the
Group has made provision for safety production expenses of RMB2 per ton based on the output of raw ore
of open-pit non-metallic mines. The safety production expenses are specifically used for the improvement,
transformation and maintenance of the Group’s safety production conditions.

The provision for safety production expenses is directly included in the cost of the relevant products or the
expenses for the period, and is presented separately in the “special reserve” item under the owners’ equity.
When safety production expenses is being used according to the prescribed scope, the expense expenditure
is used to directly offset against “special reserve”; as for the capital expenditure, the expenditure incurred is
firstly collected through “construction in progress” item and recognised as fixed assets when the safety project
is completed and ready for its intended use; at the same time, the “special reserve” will be written down based
on the cost of the fixed asset formed and the accumulated depreciation of the same amount will be recognised,
no depreciation will be provided for the fixed assets in subsequent periods.
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(IIT) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)
28. Defe "ed Income Ta «Asse s/Defe "éd Income Ta ¢ Liabili ies
i i
Income tax expenses comprise current income tax expense and deferred income tax expense.

28.1 Gt "én income_ a ¢
[ {

At the balance sheet date, current income tax liabilities (or assets) for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be paid (or recovered) according to the requirements of tax laws.

28.2 Defe "éd income, a ¢<asse s and defe "éd income, a «liabili ies

i i i L

For temporary differences between the carrying amount of certain assets or liabilities and their tax base,
or between the carrying amount of those items that are not recognised as assets or liabilities but the tax
base can be determined according to tax laws and their tax base, deferred income tax assets and deferred
income tax liabilities are recognised using the balance sheet liability method.

Deferred income tax is generally recognised for all temporary differences. However, as for deductible
temporary differences, deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised. In addition,
for temporary differences associated with the initial recognition of goodwill and the initial recognition
of an asset or liability arising from a transaction (not a business combination) that affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit (or deductible loss) at the time of transaction, no deferred tax asset
or liability is recognised.

For deductible losses and tax credits in subsequent years that can be carried forward, deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the deductible losses and tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred income tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with the
investments in subsidiaries are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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(IIT) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)
28. Defe "éd Income Ta «Asse s/Defe "éd Income Ta «Liabili ies (Continued)
i i
28.2 Defe "éd income, a <asse s and defe "éd income, a «liabili ies (Continued)
i i i i
At the balance sheet date, deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled
according to the requirements of tax laws.
Current and deferred income tax expenses or income are recognised in profit or loss for the period,
except when they arise from transactions or events that are directly recognised in other comprehensive
income or in shareholders’ equity, in which case they are recognised in other comprehensive income or
in shareholders’ equity; and when they arise from business combinations, in which case they are adjusted

to the carrying amount of goodwill.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and is reduced to
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(IIT) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)
29. Lease (Continued)
29.1 The G @up as lessee

29.1.1 Separation of leases

For a contract that contains one or more lease or non-lease components, the Group separates each
individual lease component from non-lease components and allocates the consideration in the
contract to each lease component on the basis of the stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

29.1.2 Right-of-use assets

Except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets, the Group recognises right-of-use assets
at the commencement date of the lease. The lease commencement date refers to the starting date for
the lessor to provide leased assets for use by the Group. Right-of-use assets are initially measured
at cost. Such cost includes:

U the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less the relative amount of
any lease incentives enjoyed if there are lease incentives;

. any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling and removing the underlying
assets, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms of the lease.

The Group accrues depreciation for the right-of-use assets according to the relevant depreciation
regulations of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 4 — Fixed Assets. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated within the remaining useful lives when the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain the ownership of leased assets at the end of the lease term. The depreciation is provided during
the period between the lease term and the remaining useful lives of the leased assets if it is not.

The Group determines whether the right-of-use assets are impaired and performs accounting
treatment for recognised impairment loss according to the relevant regulations of Accounting
Standard for Business Enterprise No. 8 — Impairment of Assets.
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(ITI) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)
29. Lease (Continued)
29.1 The G @up as lessee (Continued)
2913 Lease liabilities
Except for short-term leases, the Group initially measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at the lease commencement date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the interest rate implicit in the lease as discount rate, and adopts

the incremental borrowing rate if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments refer to the amount paid by the Group to the lessor in relation to the right to
use the leased asset during the lease term, including:

. fixed payments and in-substance fixed payments, less the relevant amount of any lease
incentives if there are lease incentives;

. variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;
. the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group;
. required payments that the lease term reflects for the Group exercising the option to terminate;
. estimated payable amounts based on the residual value guarantees provided by the Group.
The Group calculates the interest expense of lease liabilities for each period of the lease term at
a fixed periodic interest rate and includes it in profit and loss for the period or related asset costs
after the lease commencement date.

29.14 Short-term leases and low-value leases
For short-term leases of machinery and equipment, the Group chooses the right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities that are not certain to use. Short-term lease is defined as a lease has a lease term
of no more than 12 months and excludes a purchase option from the lease commencement date.

The Group will include the lease payments for short-term leases in profit or loss for the period or
related asset costs using the straight-line method.
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(IIT) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

29.

30.

Lease (Continued)
29.2 The G @up as lesso ™
2921 Classification of leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially almost
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

29.3 The G @.up as lesso Linde "ope 4 ing leases
{

The Group recognises lease payments for operating leases as rental income by using the straight-line
method in each period of the lease term. Initial direct costs related to the Group’s operating leases are
capitalised when incurred, are allocated on the same basis as rental income over the lease term and are
charged to profit or loss for the period in stages.

C ‘1 ical Juadgemen s in Appl ing Accean ing Policies and K)e Ass.lmp ions and Unce "ain ies in
Acca.ln ing Es ima es { L1
i i

In the process of applying the accounting policies, which are described in the notes above, the Group is
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of items in the financial
statements that cannot be measured accurately, due to the inherent uncertainties of the operating activities.
These judgments, estimates and assumptions are based on historical experiences of the Group’s management as
well as other factors that are considered to be relevant. The actual results may be different from the estimates
of the Group.

The Group regularly reviews the above judgments, estimates and assumptions on the basis of going concern.
Where the changes in accounting estimates only affect the period of change, the impact is recognised in the
period of change. Where the changes affect both current and future periods, the impact is recognised in the
period of the change and future periods.

At the balance sheet date, key assumptions and uncertainties in accounting estimates that are probable to cause
a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities are mainly:

Impai men of 4de €écei wbles
i i

The Group applies significant accounting estimates when assessing the expected recoverable amount of
trade receivables, and assesses expected credit losses and calculates credit impairment with reference to the
historical default, current credit risk status and forecast of future economic status. As at 31 December 2020,
expected credit losses of trade receivables of the Group was RMB81,253,434.19 (as at 31 December 2019:
RMB50,357,104.89).
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30. C 1 ical Judgemen s in Appl ing Accean ing Policies and Ke Ass.nmp ions and Unce "ain ies in
Acca,.ln ing Es 1males (Continued) —
i i

Impai fen of fi «d asse s
{ i

The management of the Group regularly reviews whether there are any indications of impairment for fixed assets
and recognises an impairment loss if the carrying amount of an asset is lower than its recoverable amount. The
Group conducts impairment test on fixed assets whenever there is an indication that the fixed assets may be
impaired. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and the present
value of its future cash flows. In determining the recoverable amount of fixed assets, the management of the
Group has taken into account factors including future profitability, growth rate and discount rate, etc. As at 31
December 2020, the balance of the Group’s provision for impairment of fixed assets was RMB59,162,130.14
(as at 31 December 2019: RMB16,093,080.60).

Recogni ion of defe "éd income, a ¢asse s
i { i

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has recognised deferred income tax assets of RMB25,900,515.11 (as at
31 December 2019: RMB18,458,589.23) which are included in the balance sheet. Deferred income tax assets
arise from the actual profits and temporary differences are mainly based on the actual tax rates utilized in
the upcoming years. In cases where the actual future profits generated are less than expected, a reversal of
deferred income tax assets recognised may arise, which would be recognised in the income stat